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          1  COMMITTEE ON LAND USE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: We'll call the

          3  meeting to order. This is the Oversight Financial

          4  Preliminary Budget Hearing of Land Use. We are

          5  honored today to have the Commissioner of DoITT with

          6  us, Gino Menchini, as well as Deputy Commissioner

          7  Cangemi, and Assistant Commissioner Winker with us

          8  today. DoITT is obviously responsible for all the

          9  commuter services in the agencies. The

         10  Administration of Franchise Agreements and all the

         11  telephone services for the City and we're very

         12  anxious to hear a lot of information regarding many

         13  things with the cable TV, obviously franchises that

         14   -- and also 311 in addition to all the other

         15  exciting details you're going to give us regarding

         16  your agency this year. Commissioner? Before you

         17  start, if I might introduce the committee members.

         18  To the far left in position only is Councilman

         19  Simcha Felder from Brooklyn, next would be

         20  Councilman Michael McMahon, Michael Nelson, I also

         21  you also from Brooklyn. Michael McMahon, I saw. I

         22  was just thinking, is he around He's actually in the

         23  lounge if anybody could call down. I believe he's

         24  down there. Councilwoman Gail Brewer from Manhattan.

         25  I know over there is Councilman Oliver Koppell, he's
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          2  running around. So, we thank you Commissioner for

          3  your time and apologize for being a little bit

          4  tardy.

          5                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Not a problem.

          6  Well, thank you. I appreciate the opportunity to be

          7  here today. Good afternoon, I'm Gino Menchini, the

          8  Commissioner of the Department of Information

          9  Technology and Telecommunications. Otherwise known

         10  as DoITT. I'd like to thank the Council and

         11  particularly members of the Land Use Committee for

         12  inviting me to discuss our preliminary fiscal 2004

         13  budget. With me today from DoITT are Deputy

         14  Commissioner and General Council, Agestino Cangemi,

         15  Deputy Commissioner for the Office of Strategic

         16  Technologies, Larry Knafo, and John Winker,

         17  Assistant Commissioner for Financial Services.

         18                 Last year when I came before you, I

         19  spent a lot of time talking about DoITT's role in

         20  the City's recovery after the events of September

         21  11. I want to assure you that we have continued to

         22  improve DoITT's emergency preparedness systems and

         23  procedures which in turn makes the City as a whole

         24  better prepared.

         25                 Today, I would like to talk about the
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          2  progress we have made at DoITT over the last year

          3  and the plans we have for the future. Like all City

          4  agencies in this financially demanding times, DoITT

          5  has been working to do more with less, to lower our

          6  costs without negatively impacting service and

          7  whenever possible, improving services. Doing more

          8  with less doesn't simply mean cutting spending. It

          9  means being more efficient and making better use of

         10  the resources we have. Therefore, we have taken

         11  actions that in the future will bring about

         12  significant costs savings to the City.

         13                 In the telecommunications areas, we

         14  have renegotiated local telephone usage billing

         15  rates, which are expected to save approximately $10

         16  million annually; renegotiated and formed new

         17  cellular and wireless service plans that have

         18  anticipated savings of $1.5 million dollars

         19  annually; creating a City wide telephone line

         20  cancellation project that is expected to save $1.7

         21  million dollars annually; resolicited contracts for

         22  long distance service that is expected to save

         23  $500,000.00 annually. We have started the process of

         24  evaluating and specifying multiple solicitations for

         25  competitive data services to further ensure that the
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          2  City is achieving the best value in these areas.

          3                 For us at DoITT, doing more with less

          4  does not just apply internally. For us, it also

          5  means supporting the concept of New York City

          6  government as a single enterprise. As I described

          7  when I was before you last year, I have used my role

          8  as Chief Information Officer for the City to

          9  collaborate with senior agency IT officials to

         10  identify additional areas where we can leverage

         11  technology investments that result in savings.

         12                 We have been working with the

         13  Department of Education to identify ways to reduce

         14  their telecommunications expenses. For example, we

         15  negotiated extending our telephone line rate to the

         16  Department of Education which should result in more

         17  than $300,000.00 of savings annually. At Mayor

         18  Bloomberg's direction, DoITT is leveraging our data

         19  center, fiber optic and other resources in order to

         20  reduce the City's telecommunications and

         21  infrastructure costs. This will allow other

         22  individual agencies to save when previously they've

         23  been forced to spend to secure Internet access or

         24  house data center facilities at alternate locations.

         25                 Thirteen City agencies have begun
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          2  utilizing DoITT's high performance Internet proxy

          3  environment to obtain Internet access which saves

          4  approximately $100,000.00 per agency. Sixteen

          5  agencies are now utilizing DoITT's virtual private

          6  network facility so that individual users can access

          7  their desktop e- mail from a remote location. This

          8  saves $50,000.00 per agency by eliminating the need

          9  for an infrastructure investment. In addition to

         10  saving money, these improvements have provided

         11  agencies with efficiencies such as increased

         12  security, high availability and flexibility.

         13                 Leveraging DoITT's data center

         14  infrastructure also offers agencies value added

         15  efficiencies including 24 by 7 operations

         16  monitoring, high level physical security, a fault-

         17  tolerant and robust telecommunications backbone,

         18  experienced and reliable facilities management, and

         19  increased operational up- time. To date, we have

         20  worked with the Law Department, the Housing

         21  Authority, and the Department of Finance and City

         22  wide Administrative Services to host their systems

         23  or applications at our MetroTech Data Center

         24  facility. This will result in a total cost savings

         25  of approximately $2.4 million dollars. The
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          2  Department of Finance has also saved an additional

          3  recurring expense of $125,000.00 annually by using

          4  existing DoITT data circuits.

          5                 DoITT is also looking into migrating

          6  the NYC.gov website from it's current external host

          7  site located in New Jersey to the DoITT data center.

          8  This would allow us to avoid third party vendor

          9  costs and potentially save more than $1 million

         10  dollars. DoITT is also trying to do more with less

         11  by leveraging the City's purchasing power when

         12  procuring technology. In conjunction with DCAS, the

         13  Law Department, the Mayor's Office of Contracts, and

         14  the New York State Office of General Services, we

         15  are working to establish cost effective mechanisms

         16  that agencies can use to accomplish their business

         17  goals while ensuring that appropriate purchasing

         18  guidelines are in place.

         19                 DoITT is working with vendors

         20  beginning with Microsoft to revise pricing

         21  structures for purchases made by individual agencies

         22  so that the City as a whole benefits from our

         23  combined purchasing power. In the case of Microsoft,

         24  the City is aggregating its purchasing volume with

         25  that of New York State. As a result, the State and
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          2  City will receive the most significant pricing

          3  discounts Microsoft now provides to local

          4  governments.

          5                 Concurrently, we are establishing

          6  contracts to enhance the City's capacity to address

          7  current and future technology needs, ensuring a

          8  consistent approach across the City. Once in place,

          9  these contracts will allow projects to be quickly

         10  and efficiently scoped, implemented and monitored.

         11  One such example is a contract currently pending

         12  registration with the Comptroller. This contract

         13  will use independent project monitors to provide

         14  enhanced project management and quality assurance

         15  which will ensure that the key technology projects

         16  deliver the expected results on time and within

         17  budget.

         18                 While doing more with less, DoITT has

         19  also spearheaded efforts to implement the Mayor's

         20  directive to make City government more accessible to

         21  residents. I'm sure you've all noticed the extensive

         22  changes we've made to Crosswalks NYC, the City's

         23  cable television network. We now have a programming

         24  schedule so people can tune in at predictable times

         25  to see programs they like. For example, Council 51
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          2  is now on Mondays and Thursdays in prime time, in

          3  addition to weekday mornings and weekends.

          4                 We've also been working closely with

          5  agencies to create programming that services New

          6  Yorkers. For example, we rolled out Morning Drive

          7  Live, which leverages the Department of

          8  Transportation's traffic cameras so that people can

          9  tune in to see live traffic updates. We've also

         10  created Job Spotlight with the Department of Educ --

         11  Employment and, as I'm sure many of you have seen

         12  City Classics, which dusts off some of the old

         13  footage from the 40's, 50's, and 60's archived at

         14  DORIS. We have a number of shows that we'll be

         15  launching soon, including one of my favorites,

         16  $9.99, a program that highlights how to spend a day

         17  in New York on under $10.00. It is a joint effort of

         18  DoITT, the Parks Department, the Department of

         19  Business Services, and DCLA.

         20                 At DoITT, we are constantly thinking

         21  about ways to use our programs and syndication to

         22  further promote the City in hopes of increasing

         23  tourism and economic development. Already, we have

         24  successfully syndicated a program, Seven Secrets of

         25  Grand Central, on both WNET and Delta Airlines in-
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          2  flights programming.

          3                 As you know, DoITT's fiscal year 2004

          4  preliminary budget provides for operating expenses

          5  of approximately $189.8 million dollars. This amount

          6  includes $34.5 million in personal services to

          7  support 475 full- time positions and $155.3 million

          8  dollars for other than personnel services. Of the

          9  $155.3 million in OTPS, $99.1 million dollars

         10  represents Intra- City services that DoITT provides

         11  to other City agencies. Telecommunications costs

         12  represent the largest portion of this Intra- City

         13  expense. Fiscal year 2004 Intra- City

         14  telecommunications expenditures are budgeted at $95

         15  million dollars, while total telecommunications

         16  costs are budgeted $100 million dollars. This budget

         17  projects a net increase over DoITT's fiscal 2003

         18  budget, and thus it would appear that DoITT has not

         19  been asked to make cuts. But in reality, that is not

         20  true. Every time the Office of Management and Budget

         21  has asked us to cut, we have cut.

         22                 In these times of fiscal constraint,

         23  DoITT has and will continue to aggressively

         24  investigate all available opportunities to reduce

         25  expenditures. Since the development of the
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          2  preliminary fiscal 2003 plan through the current

          3  fiscal 2004 budget, DoITT has worked closely with

          4  OMB to identify over $45 million dollars in programs

          5  to eliminate the gap. These targeted initiatives

          6  have been undertaken to achieve financial objectives

          7  while maintaining operating and service levels to

          8  our clients and customers. And we will continue to

          9  identify additional savings opportunities. In fact,

         10  just year -- last week we submitted additional

         11  possible cuts to meet the most current OMB request.

         12  Although, I have to say, I think this round of cuts

         13  while certainly be in to inflict pain.

         14                 We are looking for ways to reduce our

         15  cuts or decide what programs may have to be cut or

         16  eliminated in the future. I look forward to hearing

         17  from members of the Council as to where you believe

         18  we can reduce expenses and what you believe are core

         19  DoITT services that should not be touched. Even

         20  though we have many cuts and reductions, the

         21  preliminary fiscal 2004 budget for 2004, shows an

         22  increase over last year. The explanation of this

         23  increase is really quite simple. It's called the 311

         24  Citizen Service Initiative.

         25                 After a year of planning, technology
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          2  development and training, 12 days ago on March 9,

          3  2003, we activated the 311 phone number and started

          4  taking direct calls. Even prior to opening the 311

          5  line, hotlines from DEP, HPD, Sanitation, DOT, DOB,

          6  The Mayor's Action Center, DCA, the DOE Workforce

          7  One Line, DoITT's own line itself that was handling

          8  cable complaints, DORIS and the quality of life

          9  hotlines of the NYPD were already being answered at

         10  the 311 call center. So far we have serviced over

         11  200,000 calls. 311 gives residents, citizens and

         12  businesses one easy to remember number that they can

         13  use for all non- emergency City services. Outside of

         14  the five boroughs, people can call 212 New York. All

         15  calls are answered by a live operator 24 hours a

         16  day, seven days a week and services in over 170

         17  languages are available. If a caller makes a service

         18  request, that request is taken by a 311 operator and

         19  then is electronically transferred to the relevant

         20  agency for direct service. For example, each police

         21  precinct in the City has been equipped with computer

         22  terminals dedicated to the 311 application, so that

         23  the police can appropriately respond to quality of

         24  life complaints.

         25                 311 can service New Yorkers in many,
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          2  many ways. You can find out if alternate side of the

          3  street parking is in effect; report quality of life

          4  complaints such as loud noise, blocked driveways,

          5  disorderly youths, among others; find your

          6  neighborhood library and its operating hours; find

          7  out how to become a Parks Department lifeguard; give

          8  the Mayor your opinion; report a pothole or street

          9  light that needs to be fixed; find out about garbage

         10  collection, and many, many more services. In fact,

         11  we have over almost 7,000 items in the call agent

         12  database that's available. However, I want to remind

         13  everyone that 911 is still the number to call in the

         14  event of emergencies.

         15                 Not only is 311 an enormous benefit

         16  and resource for residents, citizens, and

         17  businesses, it's also a powerful management tool for

         18  the City. 311 will enable the City to do more with

         19  less. For starters, operating a single call center

         20  for all customer needs is far more efficient than

         21  many agency based centers throughout the City. And

         22  311 improves governmental efficiency by replacing

         23  processes performed on paper with computerization

         24  and by providing technology and training to many

         25  agencies. But more importantly, the Mayor and
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          2  governmental officials will have real time data on

          3  requests, complaints and services made which will

          4  allow for better and immediate allocation of

          5  resources and personnel. In the long term, the data

          6  generated by 311 will improve the City's ability to

          7  allocate resources and personnel across agencies. I

          8  hope that before long, Commissioners will cite

          9  statistics generated by 311 when testifying before

         10  the Council.

         11                 So far, we haven't had any serious

         12  problems with 311, but we are constantly monitoring

         13  to ensure that high quality service is being

         14  provided. One area of special attention pertains to

         15  call volume and wait times. Prior to implementing

         16  311, we knew that the City handled approximately

         17  eight million calls annually. DoITT estimates that

         18  with 311, we'll be handling from eight to 12 million

         19  calls annually. We actually think right now after

         20  the first couple of weeks of operating that we're

         21  going to be able to handle the call volume. It's, in

         22  fact, part of our awareness campaign has been to get

         23  it up and running, start to shake out problems. And

         24  the problems are probably more in terms of allowing

         25  the call agents to develop a level of experience.
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          2  Even though we've done a lot of training with them.

          3  So we have very well trained call agents. We've got

          4  a great database and now what we need to do through

          5  additional call volume and only what experience is

          6  going to provide to the call agents, a level of

          7  expertise to be able to really better provide

          8  services. But QA and keeping an eye on how calls are

          9  being handled is an important part of what we're

         10  doing right now.

         11                 Currently, we're working to expand

         12  and improve 311. Plans to incorporate additional

         13  City agency hotline numbers and call center staff

         14  are underway. With the inclusion of additional

         15  agencies, we will develop new service request

         16  abilities. Also, we are constantly expanding and

         17  evolving the content contained in the 311 database

         18  which is used for answering questions and making

         19  referrals. We will make the information contained in

         20  the database available on the Internet as well. Our

         21  target time for that is in September so that someone

         22  operating using the Internet, will be able to do

         23  exactly what our call agents of 311 are doing. We'll

         24  also allow callers to use the Internet to track

         25  service requests made by 311.
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          2                 I know there's been a lot of worry

          3  about what would become of the City employees who

          4  worked on the individual agency hotlines. In total

          5  201 City employees were functionally transferred to

          6  the 311 Center. There were no layoffs. The budget

          7  for all these employees has also been transferred to

          8  DoITT, causing a visual increase in our budget.

          9  Although this is not new City spending. All these

         10  employees are now part of a professional title

         11  series specific to the 311 job function. All

         12  received training in basic computer operations,

         13  customer service, the 311 application and general

         14  government information as well as 911 training. One

         15  of the functions that we have is we can very quickly

         16  transfer calls if they come into 311 inappropriately

         17  to 911. And our call agents have each been trained

         18  to be able to ensure that that happens efficiently.

         19                 As you can see, I'm really excited

         20  that 311 is up and running. I encourage each of you

         21  to utilize the 311 number and certainly direct your

         22  staff and constituents to call for any governmental

         23  information or services they may need. And please

         24  give us feedback about content areas that you think

         25  we need to add or to improve upon. I look forward to
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          2  working with you to find ways that you can utilize

          3  311 generated data and thereby, further expand upon

          4  the benefits 311 brings to the City.

          5                 I've sent an invitation to Speaker

          6  Miller proposing two possible dates when Council

          7  Members can come to the 311 facility for a full

          8  briefing and tour. Hopefully, we can finalize those

          9  plans quickly so that each of you can get a first

         10  hand look at 311.

         11                 I think it's clear from my testimony

         12  that this has been an extremely busy time for our

         13  Department. I'm extremely proud of our

         14  accomplishments to date and of the continued

         15  activities underway at DoITT to carry out Mayor

         16  Bloomberg's commitment to use technology to do more

         17  with less and make government more efficient,

         18  effective and accessible.

         19                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         20  appear before you today. I'd be happy to answer any

         21  questions you may have.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I thank you

         23  Commissioner. Any other testimony from anyone else?

         24  All right. We've been joined since you began

         25  speaking by Councilman Bill Perkins, Councilman
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          2  Charles Barron, Councilman Tony Avella, Councilman

          3  Mike McMahon, who I actually acknowledged before,

          4  but now he really is here. Councilman Eric Gioia.

          5                 I thank you for your testimony. I

          6  have quite a few questions on 311, I guess. I'm sure

          7  that the other Council Members have questions as

          8  well. I know Gail Brewer is here who does our

          9  informational technology committee. Is that what --

         10  Okay. Informational Technology, close enough.

         11  Technology Committee. And I know you work very

         12  closely with her as well. 311. I know how excited

         13  you are about this program. And it's obvious. Last

         14  year, was quite obvious when you testified in front

         15  of the Committee. And, of course, this year.

         16                 First of all, you mentioned that on

         17  March 9, the Call Center started. But that before

         18  that there was several, I guess hotlines or so, that

         19  were going to these folks. Can you just explain

         20  when, number one, the first call came from 311.

         21  Number two, the personnel that was involved with it

         22  before March 9. And now exactly the number of

         23  personnel.

         24                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Sure. We had

         25  the first agency to actually move into the facility.
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          2  I should give you a little bit more background about

          3  311. And we talk about 311 and 311 is certainly the

          4  telephone number that we're using. But in many ways,

          5  311 represents so many different aspects of

          6  technology for the City. It really will be -- has

          7  almost like a snowball rolling down the hill,

          8  consumed our E- governmental efforts. Because again,

          9  everything that we're doing with 311 will be

         10  available on the web. It also brings to the table,

         11  for us, an area of technology not unlike some other

         12  areas of technology where we try to apply a City

         13  wide technology. Like let's say, instead of agency

         14  having a time keeping system, there's efforts under

         15  way to move to have one City wide time keeping

         16  system. Part of what we invested with our 311

         17  initiative was a category of software and a set of

         18  tools that are in the industry known as CRM. The

         19  term in the industry is used as Customer

         20  Relationship Management We put a government slant on

         21  that and we call it Citizen Relationship Management

         22  because it really allows us to be able to provide a

         23  much higher level of service through one set of

         24  tools. So that every agency does not have to

         25  reinvent the wheel, reacquire software and allows us
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          2  to begin to break down the agency silos that exist

          3  in terms of dealing with the public. In fact, in my

          4  testimony, the product that we mentioned was a

          5  product called Seibol. It's used by virtually every

          6  large customer focus -- I shouldn't say every. It's

          7  certainly the leader in the marketplace. And it's

          8  used by many of the large customer focused companies

          9  to be able to manage their relationship with their

         10   -- with their customers and to be able to provide

         11  some of the single -- a single view or single

         12  interface to customers from when you deal with the

         13  company. We're going to get a tremendous amount of

         14  benefit from that.

         15                 It's also important to note that

         16  we're using it now for the telephone interface

         17  through 311. I mentioned the Internet capability

         18  that will be there as well. But in addition, this

         19  same tool can help us to manage faxes that come into

         20  agencies as well as written correspondence so that

         21  we can begin to make sure that issues that come to

         22  City agencies from the public are being tracked.

         23  There's a function in here that we call Close the

         24  Loop. It's to really make sure that you know that a

         25  complaint is satisfied. It's great to be able to
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          2  know that it's -- that it came in, when it came in,

          3  who it went to, but to know that it's been

          4  satisfied, who satisfied it, what the duration of

          5  that transaction was from the public's perspective

          6  gives us a tremendous power and capability to really

          7  better manage how we're providing service. So I'm

          8  not sure if I answered your question.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: No.

         10                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: I haven't.

         11  We'll get back to that.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Actually, no.

         13                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: I will.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Why don't I restate

         15  it?

         16                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Oh,

         17  absolutely.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Because and let me

         19  explain the context. Because this is a budget

         20  hearing, obviously I have quite a few questions on

         21  the budget. But in order to answer those questions,

         22  I need to know the personnel before March 9, the

         23  personnel now, how many folks are involved before

         24  March 9. Which agencies? And so on.

         25                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Sure. The
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          2  first agency that came --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: But thanks for

          4  trying.

          5                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: That's okay.

          6  And again, you know I'm excited about this. This is

          7  an interesting area for us. The first agency to come

          8  in was the Housing Preservation Development

          9  Department. And they came into our facility on

         10  October 1, of last year. That was an important

         11  agency for us because they actually have their heat

         12  complaint season that starts in the winter time. So

         13  we got them in on October 1. And then we began to

         14  bring agencies in, in stages up until the last

         15  agency which came in back -- actually a few weeks

         16  before March 9. Which was the New York City Police

         17  Departments Quality of Lifeline. And the staff from

         18  those agencies were -- I mean after an assessment.

         19  Because part of what we wanted to make sure that we

         20  were not doing was crippling an agencies ability to

         21  respond -- I'm not answering your question am I?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: No. Commissioner,

         23  if you could really just stick to numbers -- we love

         24   -- we understand that you love this.

         25                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Okay.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And that's great.

          3  And should be an advocate for everything in your

          4  agency. Because you really are a great advocate.

          5                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Thanks. The

          6  number of people?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: We just need a head

          8  count.

          9                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: I can give you

         10  the total number. The total number of people that we

         11  brought in as a result of these agencies moving in

         12  has been 201.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: People?

         14                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: People that

         15  were functionally transferred from other agencies

         16  into DoITT as part of this effort.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay. We have to

         18  assume that a lot of those folks came over before

         19  March 9?

         20                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Yes. They came

         21  in stages from October 1 through --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Through March 9.

         23                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: -- March 9.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay, that helps.

         25  So I thank you.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: I'm sorry.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: No, that's fine.

          4  Let me take it from another angle. We are concerned

          5  about the budget. DoITT historically runs basically

          6  under funded throughout the years. We've always had

          7  to mods in order to make up the money. One of the

          8  concerns about this budget for 311 is obviously the

          9  funding going from $3.910 million in the adopted

         10  budget to now $5.550 million as modified. And

         11  according to our numbers -- and this is really the

         12  question -- according to our numbers, only $1.3

         13  million have been obligated. In the last

         14  modification we added $1.6 million. So, according to

         15  what we know and you'll have to correct us if we're

         16  wrong, you basically have about $4.2 million dollars

         17  to spend in the next two or three months. So, that

         18  may be wrong. And it is -- if you could just clarify

         19  that for us, that would be really helpful.

         20                 MR. CANGEMI: That is correct. There

         21  are currently contracts that are in the pipeline

         22  that are going to be registered imminently which

         23  will encumber those funds and those funds will be

         24  spent by June 30.

         25                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: One of the
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          2  things and one of the reasons why -- I understand

          3  that there is some confusion concerning this. And

          4  it's one of the reasons why we want to schedule time

          5  with the Council to go through this in detail.

          6  Because I'm not sure we'll be able to get through

          7  all of this today. And I'm not certainly not in any

          8  way attempting to avoid your questions and/or not be

          9  able to respond. One of the things that makes 311 so

         10  much -- I mean we are moving and probably making one

         11  of the most substantive changes in terms of how --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Commissioner?

         13                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: -- The staff

         14  go.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Just very quickly.

         16  I think you're talking about OTPS. And I think I was

         17  talking about personnel. I apologize.

         18                 MR. CANGEMI: In terms of the PS

         19  budget, there was a budget code that was set up for

         20  311. Okay. Some of the people that went in were put

         21  in the wrong budget code initially and there's a

         22  journal entry pending to move the charges between

         23  the codes to actually correct the funding. To

         24  actually correct the expenditures against the code.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So you're basically
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          2   -- so this is wrong? Is that what you're saying?

          3                 MR. CANGEMI: I'm saying in terms --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: The code is wrong?

          5                 MR. CANGEMI: In terms of the funding,

          6  it's understated. Because some of the people were --

          7  when they initially came into the agency, were put

          8  into the wrong budget code for several pay cycles.

          9  So, therefore, those charges are in the wrong budget

         10  code and they will be moved into 311.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I don't mean to be

         12  difficult. We want to give you an opportunity to

         13  explain it. Because, obviously in these very

         14  difficult fiscal circumstances right now, we're

         15  looking at every penny. We show that it was moved

         16  March 18, in a modification. And it was $1.6 million

         17  dollars. And I'll guess you'll understand how

         18  difficult it is for us when there is only three

         19  months left in the fiscal cycle. And it's about a $4

         20  million over budget.

         21                 MR. CANGEMI: You're talking a budget

         22  modification?  I'm not following you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: There was a budget

         24  modification on March 18, where we added $1.6

         25  million dollars on PS for you.
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          2                 MR. CANGEMI: That was the allocation

          3  of funding that was set up in what's called the P

          4  code when OMB put it into a holding code. So funds

          5  were moved into that budget code via a budget

          6  modification. Now, the expenditures that are being

          7  made right now will definitely -- we will expand

          8  those funds by June 30. There may be some accruals

          9  because of delays and hires and what not. But we

         10  fully anticipate being within budget by, you know,

         11  during the course of the fiscal year.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So, basically you

         13  expect to spend the full $5.5 million in personnel

         14  services by June 30? You don't expect to have any of

         15  surplus there?

         16                 MR. CANGEMI: There may be some

         17  accruals. But I don't believe that there is going to

         18  be a significant surplus. No.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Great. Is that it?

         20                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: I don't think

         21  it will be significant. Certainly, this project is

         22  costing money. But I think it's worth the

         23  investment.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Right. But the

         25  money it's costing and correct me again if I'm
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          2  wrong, the money it's costing supposedly is coming

          3  from other agencies budgets. So, you're saying

          4  that's not new money?

          5                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Some of it is

          6  not new money. And there is some of the money that

          7  has been added to it.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: How much will be in

          9  new money?

         10                 COMMISSION MENCHINI: If you want, I

         11  could try to give you -- I have a prepared statement

         12  that I will read to you about budget. Because it is

         13  complex. Do you want me to do it?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Well, there should

         15  be a certain amount of money that's coming from

         16  other agencies and being re --

         17                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Right.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: -- Put into the

         19  budget from other agencies. And then there should be

         20  a certain amount of new money. Right?

         21                 MR. CANGEMI: We were allocated 75 new

         22  full- time positions. At an annual cost and

         23  beginning in fiscal '04, $6.5 million dollars. Okay.

         24  Fiscal '03, it's $3.8 million dollars. New funds.

         25  The other funding were transferred from other City
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          2  agencies.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So $3.8 is new

          4  funding?

          5                 MR. CANGEMI: That's correct. In '03.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And the other

          7  agencies all went down the difference between --

          8                 MR. CANGEMI: That's correct. It's a

          9  wash.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay. I'm going to

         11  let other Council Members. I really have just one

         12  extra question about the Police Department. You

         13  stated in your statement that we're getting some

         14  police personnel and I'm wondering first of all if

         15  there's police personnel being taken from the

         16  precincts in order to accommodate 311. The second

         17  would be if in the precincts there's computers, does

         18  that mean that now we have one police officer

         19  answering the phone and one police officer on the

         20  computer. Or is it going to be done by the same

         21  person or how do you see that being done?

         22                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Okay. If

         23  anything, this is a service that was provided by

         24  DoITT to the Police Department. So we were able to

         25  make, I think, a tremendous advance in their
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          2  capability to be able to manage quality of life type

          3  calls. In response to your staffing issues, there

          4  have been no police officers or anyone from the

          5  Police Department that have been assigned to 311.

          6  The work stations are, in fact, and this was a bit

          7  of challenge for us and we installed in the precinct

          8  typically at the desk -- the main desk of the

          9  precinct and the existing personnel that are

         10  assigned to manage that desk now have one additional

         11  extra tool for them in the form of the 311

         12  workstation. I'm not aware of any additional

         13  personnel being assigned or dedicated to that

         14  function or that capability.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: All right. And

         16  these are civilians that are going to be in the 311

         17  call center that you said were the NYPD?

         18                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: I'm sorry. The

         19   --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: There's no NYPD

         21  being taken off to --

         22                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: We did not --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: -- Go into the 311

         24  centers?

         25                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: No. We did not
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          2  move --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: None of those 200

          4  people are being taken off the street as NYPD?

          5                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Definitely

          6  not.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay.

          8                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: And, in fact,

          9  we did not move the quality of life people from the

         10  Police Department over to -- they're not included in

         11  that 201. So, this is a service that's being

         12  provided as a result of the efficiencies that we're

         13  getting by moving these people into 311.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: All right. I have

         15  one or two other questions. But I'm going to let

         16  Council Members go next. Councilman Nelson.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you both

         18  Commissioner and staff. Just something caught my

         19  eye. It's totally different venue than where the

         20  Chair was going. But it seems we had an external

         21  website of the New York government in Jersey. Could

         22  you how, what, where, when why or whatever?

         23                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: That caught my

         24  eye as well. There was during in the past when the

         25  E- government initiative was undertaking, an
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          2  external contractor was used to house our

          3  facilities. And we think there's been -- number one,

          4  I try to keep as much in New York City as I possibly

          5  can. I think there's certainly a savings opportunity

          6  by leveraging our existing resources for that. So,

          7  we are moving very rapidly to move to eliminate our

          8  dependents on that external contractor --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: We could save

         10  about a million dollars a year with this?

         11                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: I mean, New

         13  Jersey is a fine state. But I mean, you would have

         14  to be eccentric. For how long has it been there?

         15                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: I think it's

         16  been about three years.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Wow.

         18                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: And those are

         19  the kinds of -- I mean, there is an example

         20  something we can obviously do to save money. We

         21  don't have to eliminate other services and just to

         22  me it makes sense to do that.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: I would say.

         24                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: You would say,

         25  right?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: That's a shame

          3  it was there for three years. Some thing about

          4  Crosswalks though. By the way, how often do you

          5  update that? I've noticed that I'm hardly ever on

          6  it.

          7                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: I'm sorry.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Councilman

          9  McMahon, over here -- not Nelson. But I see that

         10  it's elite of Council 51. It's been the same Council

         11  Members for about, I don't know, a year, maybe more.

         12  Do you every switch it around a little bit? Get a

         13  little more exciting? Put my picture in there?

         14                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: I can look

         15  into that. We've actually taken -- my program,

         16  people at the Crosswalks work with the Council staff

         17  and whatever -- we air every single -- everything

         18  that we event. In fact, our people here today and I

         19  think some of the changes we're making in Crosswalk

         20  will really help to get more people --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Just so the

         22  spirit of fairness. If you just rotate the 51 of us

         23  a little bit. Put them in one of those lotto shake

         24  up things.

         25                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: We'll do.
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          2  Thank you.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: We've been joined

          5  by Councilman Comrie from Queens. Councilman

          6  McMahon?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Thank you,

          8  Madam Chairwoman. And my mother has asked me, how

          9  come I never appear on that profile as well that

         10  Council Member Nelson is talking about. So, I join

         11  in that request. I also have a very small question

         12  and then a very big question. On the 311 testimony

         13  that you gave, you said that outside the five

         14  boroughs, people can call 212 NEW YORK. Now why

         15  serve the same lines as Council Member Nelson being

         16  territorial here, why do we want people from outside

         17  the five boroughs to call the New York help line?

         18                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: That's a good

         19  question. First of all, we want to make sure that

         20  people that are, let's say, are residents of Staten

         21  Island that work in New Jersey and have an issue

         22  that they want to address, when they get to work

         23  have a way of calling into us. And it's the way that

         24   -- because we've changed the Verizon systems here

         25  and our cell systems here, so that when you dial 311
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          2  from anywhere within New York City, you come into

          3  us. But outside of the five boroughs, you would have

          4  no way of calling into us. And we needed to

          5  establish an easy to remember ten digit number to be

          6  able to do that. So, in some instances it might be

          7  for example, the children of a senior that want to

          8  be able to lodge a heat complaint. This gives them

          9  an avenue into doing that. There is also, we think,

         10  at the long term some potential benefit for tourism

         11  and other people that may want to call in and get

         12  information. But, our focus, of course, is to

         13  provide services to the people of the City of New

         14  York.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: But if I call

         16  in from outside the five boroughs with an issue or

         17  request, I mean does someone screen it and make sure

         18  that it's a City type of issue?

         19                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Absolutely. I

         20  mean if you call in, they're going to still work

         21  with the tool set that we have. If it's something in

         22  regarding to another locality, we would not be able

         23  to respond to that question.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Okay. Then

         25  the bigger question is, Commissioner, what do you
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          2  see coming down now in the executive budget and how

          3  will your agency deal with, I think, what are going

          4  to be much more severe budget cuts. I know they're

          5  not in front of you now, but we all know that we're

          6  facing probably a $4 billion hole. A lot of the

          7  relief that we were hoping for from Albany and the

          8  federal government is not coming in. What do you see

          9  happening to -- probably 311 is probably your most

         10  well- known service now. How will your agency deal

         11  with these much more dramatic cuts? How will it

         12  affect the service that you deliver?

         13                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: That's a big

         14  question. That's one of our -- that's something that

         15  dominates most of my day these days. We have been

         16  and we've gone through our agency to look at what we

         17  do and done a functional assessment of each and

         18  every area. And what changes we've made so far have

         19  been really -- have been behind the scenes under the

         20  cover and have not affected the areas where we serve

         21  the public. Our agency is very much, I mean most of

         22  our clients are -- with the exception now of 311 and

         23  NYC.gov, DoITT has been sort of a behind the scenes

         24  agency serving other agencies. And that's something

         25  that we are committed to continue to do. The areas
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          2  that we do provide service to the public are areas

          3  that to me, I will make those cuts and have an

          4  impact on those services as a very last thing that I

          5  do. As you know, we manage public pay telephones. We

          6  have a small group of inspectors that do public pay

          7  telephone inspections. To me that's probably one of

          8  the most important, although small, one of the most

          9  important things that we do from the average

         10  citizens perspective. Making sure that those public

         11  pay telephones are kept clean and that we do an

         12  effective job in enforcing high standards for

         13  cleanliness in public pay telephones, is probably

         14  most of the most visible quality of life related

         15  services that we provide to people.

         16                 We're going to go through identify

         17  what type of efficiencies we can gain and do

         18  everything that we can before we have to hit

         19  services that affect other agencies in the public.

         20  Some of the areas that are being discussed right now

         21  are reductions in Crosswalks. We are attempting, I'm

         22  trying to find other ways to avoid this, but trying

         23  to preserve the money that we have to be able to

         24  pull and remove illegally placed public pay

         25  telephones. So those are some of the areas that we
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          2  are going to try to find some ways to be able to

          3  save money. As you mentioned, by eliminating a $1

          4  million dollar contract for services that we can

          5  provide, we think more effectively. Those type of

          6  initiatives will help us to preserve services. I'm

          7  not sure if I've answered your question. But --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Well, it

          9  does. And I understand it's hard to commit, because

         10  we don't know the exact numbers and what we're

         11  looking at. And certainly we'll go over this again

         12  after the release of the executive budget. I think

         13  as we go through another round of these hearings,

         14  we'll probably have a better sense. I think what we

         15  have to do is make clear to everyone what will

         16  happen to the City and to those services you

         17  provide. Especially behind the scenes. And how they

         18  will be -- I mean you would probably look at, I

         19  would think, as not being in that category of

         20  nonessential, 20 percent cut, I would think, as

         21  opposed to what we've talked about here. I think we

         22  have to start raising a level of the dialogue to the

         23  public so that we know what we're facing and what

         24  will happen to --

         25                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Right.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: -- The City

          3  operations. So I'm sure we'll have an opportunity to

          4  do that. I appreciate your candor. Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Commissioner, since

          6  you mentioned the pay phones, just very quickly.

          7  Have you notice a trend over the last few years? I

          8  mean, since Councilman McMahon talked about budget,

          9  a trend on the amount of money that the City gets

         10  from the cable franchises, from the telephone

         11  franchises. I have to assume that with the cellular

         12  phones in the City of New York that the money that

         13  we've received from the telephone franchise is

         14  especially -- is lowered.

         15                 MR. WINKER: I can handle that. On the

         16  pay telephones, there's been a slight downward trend

         17  on the revenue associated with coinage. We're

         18  holding steady. Last year, the revenues were

         19  approximately $18 million dollars. We expect that

         20  this year's revenues will be $18 million dollars as

         21  well. There is an advertising component to the

         22  phones that are in Manhattan. The advertising

         23  industry globally here or even locally in New York

         24  has had a severe decline. But the revenue there is

         25  approximately $9 million dollars.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So you found the

          3  advertising is equalized the lowering of the amount

          4  that we're getting for the telephones?

          5                 MR. WINKER: Actually the franchise

          6  coinage revenue has remained rather steady. The

          7  advertising came down. We're seeing it slightly turn

          8  around over the past quarter.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And cable?

         10                 MR. WINKER: Cable has been

         11  increasing. But it's been relatively stable. Usually

         12  it's pegged that we receive five percent of gross

         13  revenue on the cable franchises. So, as digit

         14  television starts to roll out and subscribers start

         15  to take advantage of digit tv, there will be an

         16  increase in cable revenue.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So it's an increase

         18  because rates have gone up?

         19                 MR. WINKER: No.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: No?

         21                 MR. WINKER: It's also -- it's because

         22   --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: New system fee, put

         24  it?

         25                 MR. WINKER: You're switching from
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          2  analog system which has 70 channels to a digital

          3  system. It's an extra $10.00 a month for those extra

          4  channels.

          5                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: But rates have

          6  also gone up. And that's certainly a part of it as

          7  well.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Right. Because he

          9  said we're just starting to see the outcomes for the

         10  digit. So, if it has to be last year's budget, it

         11  has to be because of the rates. Councilman Avella?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: To you

         13  Commissioner. Just a quick question. I wanted to

         14  know your thoughts on -- I understand other

         15  municipalities have a 211 system that relates to

         16  healthcare services. What are your thoughts on it

         17  and how does that relate to our 311 system?

         18                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Well, we're

         19  trying to cut our teeth and get and develop

         20  expertise with 311. We believe that we want to try

         21  to remove as much complexity in the customer service

         22  experience to citizens as possible. And even 211

         23  potentially creates some confusion as to whether or

         24  not it's a human services issue or something handled

         25  by the other agencies. So our pledge right now are
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          2  to see how this evolves. But to move towards a model

          3  where there really are only two numbers that

          4  citizens in New York have to remember. 911 for

          5  emergencies and 311 for everything else. And I know

          6  the last time I appeared one of the questions -- one

          7  of the concerns had been whether or not our callers

          8  would be subjected to like automated systems that

          9  would keep them in -- we were committed to a service

         10  level of having people answer the phone, providing

         11  multiple lingual service which is what we're

         12  providing right now. And if someone has a human

         13  services related question, we'll use that function

         14  to transfer them to the appropriate agency. And to

         15  be able to better track in one system. What kind of

         16  calls are coming in? Where are they coming from? And

         17  what do we need to do pro- actively to better

         18  provide service? Those are to some extent as we do

         19  have to make budget cuts and to better understand

         20  potentially how are efforts to try to prevent the

         21  public from being affected by those are. And I think

         22  311 will be a very effective tool in being able to

         23  do that. But 211 is something that certainly --

         24  that's something I think we need to keep in mind.

         25  Our preference would be to handle everything through
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          2  311.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Council Member

          4  Brewer.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you.

          6  Good afternoon, Gino. The question is this. I know

          7  that you have done a great job in trying to

          8  renegotiate some of the phone company. What I'm

          9  wondering though is that how -- do you have any

         10  estimated total billing for all telecommunications

         11  services across City agencies? I know you

         12  experimented quite well with some of the voice over.

         13  Maybe working on wireless. Ways in which we can,

         14  with all due respect to Verizon, cut dramatically. I

         15  don't know if it's $80 million or $90 million that

         16  we pay them every year. It would be great, with all

         17  due respect to Verizon, not to have to do that.

         18                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Do you want to

         19  know what we spend --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Yes.

         21                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Right now

         22  according to the 2003 executive budget, we spend $91

         23  million dollars on telecommunications and cable tv.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. And how

         25  much of that is Verizon? That's nothing not at all?

                                                            46

          1  COMMITTEE ON LAND USE

          2                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: I'm --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Verizon?

          4                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: The Verizon

          5  portion of that? I'm sorry. It's approximately 80

          6  percent.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Eighty

          8  percent. All right. And you're working on steps --

          9  now do you oversee all City or just mayoral

         10  agencies. In other words, if we're really thinking

         11  about saving money, are you able to go beyond the

         12  mayoral? I don't know if it's 50 or whatever the

         13  number is, to I guess, now Board of Education and

         14  HHC, et cetera, to really think about a

         15  telecommunication system that seriously saves money?

         16                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: We negotiate

         17  rates that are available to all agencies. The

         18  Department of Ed has been using our rate structure.

         19  NYCHA has been using our rate structure. What we try

         20  to do is work beyond the mayorals to get more

         21  leverage with our vendors and to get better rates

         22  that are applicable to everyone. It would save

         23  considerable -- the Department of Ed is one of the

         24  areas where just in the last year, we saved

         25  $300,000.00 by them using the rate structure that we
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          2  have put in place. And we're going to continue to

          3  focus on doing what we can do to be able to groom

          4  and manage our telecommunication expenses.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: The Mayor in

          6  the paper, I think over the weekend, talked about

          7  renting out municipal roof tops for revenue. Is that

          8  a real discussion and if so how much is estimated in

          9  revenue?

         10                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: I don't know

         11  if a revenue estimate has been placed on that.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Oh.

         13                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: But I think

         14  that's a real -- and part of what of what's

         15  important to us in terms of ensuring that the City

         16   -- that our citizens have the best

         17  telecommunications infrastructure available is to

         18  see what we can do to make it cost effective for

         19  self- service providers to be able to operate in New

         20  York City. And also to hold them to a standard. I

         21  think that like many large cities, our self- service

         22  really could used to be improved and we have to be

         23  diligent. Even though we are relatively restricted

         24  in terms of how much we can regulate that industry.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: What's the

                                                            48

          1  COMMITTEE ON LAND USE

          2  status of that discussion in the newspaper?

          3                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: There's work

          4  being done now by the Department of Education that

          5  provides -- it probably has the greatest number of

          6  buildings with the most appropriate height for

          7  tenant sitings and are distributed throughout the

          8  borough -- the five boroughs most evenly. There's an

          9  RP that has been promulgated by the Department of Ed

         10  and we're working with them to see if that type of

         11  agreement would be able to meet the needs of that

         12  industry. There is also an RP that we're looking at

         13  in terms of street lamps of street poles and

         14  utilizing that infrastructure to again, provide

         15  contemporary telecommunication service.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: But it

         17  probably wouldn't be for this year's budget? It

         18  would be for next year's budget?

         19                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: It would be

         20  for next year's budget.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: The other

         22  question is I -- if INET (phonetic) -- if one of you

         23  could describe the costs and benefits associated

         24  with DoITT's recent efforts to connect more

         25  municipal buildings to the INET and the reason I
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          2  asked this, of course, is obviously there's lots of

          3  advantages, but I assume cost is one of them.

          4                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Absolutely.

          5  The cost --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I don't know

          7  if everybody knows what INET is. Since you might

          8  want to give --

          9                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Just to give

         10  some brief background. As part of our franchise

         11  agreements with cable companies and with the high

         12  caps, we've negotiated in the ability for us to

         13  request fiber optic strands from those companies as

         14  they're running services in our streets. So that

         15  means we have a tremendous amount of fiber available

         16  to us in terms of its being available throughout the

         17  streets of New York. The direction that we've taken

         18  is to try identify City buildings that have a high

         19  number of telecommunication circuits installed in

         20  those buildings. And to find certain requirements,

         21  for example, with the Police Department and the Fire

         22  Department, we're having alternate services to

         23  Verizon would give them a level of availability that

         24  we really think that we need to have for our first

         25  responders. I can give you one example for just two

                                                            50

          1  COMMITTEE ON LAND USE

          2  buildings. We were able to spend $60 million --

          3  $60,000.00, I'm sorry, from the INET fund that we

          4  have available to us. And we expect to see

          5  $180,000.00 per year saving as a result of that

          6  investment. So, that's an example of something that

          7  I think we need to continue to do. See where we can

          8  begin to leverage some of the other resources that

          9  we have to help reduce our costs.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Are those

         11  strands free or do we have to pay for them or is it

         12  a variety?

         13                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: The strands

         14  are free. We need to pay to make the final mile

         15  connection between our building and wherever they

         16  may lie in the street. We also need to pay for the

         17  electronics that will light that fiber and provide

         18  us with the service that we need as well as the

         19  ongoing maintenance of that equipment in the

         20  provision of technical support services to keep that

         21  service -- that system operational.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: And how -- are

         23  there any other possible savings, I guess, in next

         24  year's budget as we move forward to try to connect

         25  some other buildings? Are you working on that?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: We are. We are

          3  trying to identify those buildings that again are

          4  good candidates and where there is a high return on

          5  our investment to connect them to our facilities.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Madam, I'm

          7  sure I could go on and on, but go ahead. I'm done

          8  for now.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Councilman Felder?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Good

         11  afternoon. How much does this Crosswalks Program

         12  cost entirely? To run the whole thing?

         13                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Well, first of

         14  all, we have some monies that come in from our lease

         15  time programmers. There are a number and you'll

         16  probably see them on one of our channels. For

         17  example, Sinovision is one of them. Where they

         18  actually pay us for time that they buy from us on

         19  some of our channels. We use that to help pay for

         20  our ability to be able to televise Council hearings

         21  and --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I want to know

         23  how much it cost the City. I want to know after your

         24  profits how much it costs. That's all.

         25                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: In addition to
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          2  that -- those monies, it's $1.8 million dollars.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Okay. I

          4  haven't received any complaints about how often I'm

          5  on Crosswalks. Because it depends where you sit

          6  here. Like Councilman Lanza is on the wrong side of

          7  the table. There's no way that the camera guy can

          8  get him. I know where to sit near the witnesses so

          9  they can see my face all the time. But even so --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: He wants to know if

         11  that's literally. On the wrong side.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Even so, I

         13  don't have a problem scrapping the whole thing if

         14  we're stuck for money. I know that many of my

         15  colleagues may not feel the same way. But if we're

         16  stuck for money, scrap the whole program and they

         17  don't have to see my face ever again on Crosswalks.

         18  I'm making suggestion that that should be

         19  considered. So just scrap it.

         20                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: It's one of

         21  the areas that we have in the last round of cuts

         22  identified for a significant reduction.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Okay, I'm

         24  delighted. Secondly, the 311 program which I'm very,

         25  very, very happy about. I know that you're going to
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          2  take us through this walk through of the program.

          3  But just simply, when somebody makes a call now to

          4  311, somebody answers the phone. You said a person

          5  answers the phone. Do they give an ID number? What

          6  happens?

          7                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Well --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I'd like to

          9  know what happens. This is not for now because I'm

         10  very interested. I'm really happy about the program.

         11  Because it lends accountability.

         12                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Right.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: But is it

         14  taped? Is the con --

         15                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Right now what

         16  we've done is there's a very brief greeting message

         17  that's presented to each caller. And we do that for

         18  a number of reasons. Number one, we want to identify

         19  ourselves. So, if I were to call now, I would hear:

         20  Hello, you've reached City of New York. This call

         21  may be recorded for quality assurance purposes. If

         22  this is an emergency, please hang up and dial 911.

         23  And we've also presented in that message typically

         24  the most frequently asked question which is

         25  alternate side of the street parking. Is it in
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          2  effect or not today? That saves us money by not

          3  having to have a call agent handle that. We're

          4  seeing about 4,000 calls a day where people just

          5  want to hear that and they get off. So, that's

          6  better than us having to have someone handle it. It

          7  then goes to the next available call agent who

          8  identify themselves by name and say: Hi, you've

          9  reached Gino. How can I help you today? And were we

         10  have implemented -- so now, they will ask you what

         11  you need. They have a system in front of them where

         12  they can enter key words and be able to get either

         13  the right place to refer you to or handle that --

         14  answer that question directly there without

         15  referring you any place else. And over time, we plan

         16  on moving more people -- more of our functions

         17  towards that model. If there's a service request,

         18  like for example, street light -- we do this right?

         19  We will give you a tracking number so that you can

         20  call back later and find out where that is and

         21  that's part of what we're building into in terms of

         22  the accountability piece. So that there's a specific

         23  complaint number, tracking number. In six months,

         24  you'll be able to go to the Internet and you'll be

         25  able to look that up on your own. But if you call
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          2  back, you can go back in and they keep that

          3  complaint on our systems and you can find out the

          4  status of that particular complaint.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I want to

          6  follow the Chairwoman's suggestion that we limit the

          7  questions to budgetary. But I'm very, very

          8  interested in this issue. I have more questions

          9  about it because I think most people, you know, have

         10  lost faith in the ability for City to provide

         11  services. And when you call private businesses or

         12  corporations and they say, Hi, I'm Gino. And my

         13  number is 12678. And there's something that you can

         14  write down on such and such date, I called and I

         15  spoke and obviously you're not 20 different Gino's

         16  with the same numbers. So I'd like to spend the time

         17   -- more time on that.

         18                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Right. Again,

         19  we're proud of this and we'd love to go over it.

         20  We'd also like to get ideas that you might have in

         21  terms of how to improve it. I'll give you one

         22  example. We handle cable complaints. We've seen

         23  since 311 was active, a 53 percent increase in the

         24  number of cable complaints that we've received. And

         25  we are-- we go in and we try to understand why
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          2  that's happening. What we concluded is that we're

          3  now providing 24 hour a day, seven day a week

          4  service. So many people go home after work and go to

          5  their television and try to use their service. And

          6  they want to make a complaint then and there. Not

          7  the next day between the hours of 9:00 or 5:00 and

          8  they didn't want to necessarily leave a recording

          9  which is what we provided. So, we're already seeing

         10  a 53 percent increase in complaints which is

         11  terrific. It helps me to be able to use that

         12  information to better ensure that cable service is

         13  at the standard that we expect through our

         14  franchise. And that's one small example of where we

         15  expect to see some real benefit. So, I look forward

         16  to going through this with you in more detail.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I think,

         18  Councilman, this really is budget. Because if $3

         19  million dollars extra money is coming into this

         20  budget and a lot of the other agencies are getting

         21  cut and the money is getting transferred some of it

         22  from the other agencies. It does end up being

         23  somewhat budgetary. If you have any questions -- no

         24  that's okay. Do you have anything else you would

         25  like to ask? You don't? Okay. I just have a few
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          2  follow up. Just to sort of close everything up from

          3  the things that we were talking about. Our finance

          4  department has been told by a union that there are

          5  two full- time police officers that are expected to

          6  be answering the 311 calls. Is that not right?

          7                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: I don't --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay.

          9                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: I'm not aware

         10  of any at all.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So as far as you

         12  know there's no extra personnel from the Police

         13  Department either being redeployed from the

         14  precincts or from the street --

         15                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Absolutely

         16  not.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: -- To answer these

         18  311 calls?

         19                 COMMISSIONER  MENCHINI: Not at all.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: What about the fact

         21  that we already have problems with the police

         22  answering the phones sometimes?

         23                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Well, that's

         24  actually the benefit -- that's the benefit of this

         25  system.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: They have don't

          3  have enough personnel as it is. That's not their

          4  fault.

          5                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Right.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: They keep getting

          7  cut.

          8                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: But that's

          9  actually one of the benefits of the system is that

         10  in the past you may have been told to call your

         11  police precinct and you had to know your number. And

         12  now with 311, if it's an issue that you used to have

         13  to call the police precinct, other than like a

         14  report of a stolen vehicle that's still handled in

         15  the precinct, 311 agents are handling that and it's

         16  going through the system and being tracked as we

         17  outlined. And again, what the status of it is and

         18  what the position of it is being tracked.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Have you completed

         20  your training for those police officers? Or are you

         21  planning, I guess, on training the police officers

         22  to use the computers?

         23                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: We've trained

         24   --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: They're trained
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          2  already?

          3                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: -- Over 600 --

          4  1,600, I'm sorry.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Some of them may as

          6  computer illiterate as I am.

          7                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Right. The

          8  system, in fact, is a web based tool. It's very easy

          9  to use. We've trained --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay.

         11                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: -- This is a

         12  good example. We'll never finish our training. Last

         13  I asked this question, it was 600. There is already

         14  1,600. So we are going to continue our training of

         15  police officers. And because police officers do

         16  rotate through the desk, we have a lot of police

         17  officers that need to be trained to use this system.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay. Just quickly

         19  and then one more question. The financial statements

         20  that you mentioned when I asked you about the budget

         21  and the OTPS and the PS, you said you had a

         22  financial statement that was very intricate that you

         23  could read. Do you mind just handing that to us?

         24                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: No, not at

         25  all.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And we'll just take

          3  it as part of your testimony. Great. Just before I

          4  forget, the Verizon Special Tariff. DoITT is

          5  supposed to receive apparently the revenue of $4.5

          6  million in fiscal year 2004 from this special

          7  tariff. We're wondering, obviously, -- how is that

          8  tariff calculated and developed and was it, I guess,

          9  in response to the White Plains Decision?

         10                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: No, it was

         11  not. It was actually -- it's in recognition of the

         12  fact that we have -- that we are such a large

         13  customer. The tariff level that we are at, in fact,

         14  is only available to one other customer, J.P. Morgan

         15  Chase. And it's a special tariff that's been

         16  designated for customers with over $85 million

         17  dollars -- with over $85 million dollars in revenue.

         18  And we keep trying to leverage our volume to be able

         19  to get better pricing.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So this is in no

         21  way in response to the White Plains decision

         22  regarding the franchise payments of Verizon?

         23                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: It pre- dates

         24  the White Plains issue. Well, the final decision in

         25  the White Plains issue.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: All right.

          3                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: If you have

          4  additional questions in this area, I'd be happy to

          5  go through it and provide you with what --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: If Mr. Collins

          7  doesn't, I don't. The only last thing is, DoITT is

          8  required as for the authorizing agreement to provide

          9  the City Council in July of every year the revenue

         10  numbers from each of the cable telecommunications

         11  and pay phone franchises. Apparently, we have to

         12  request that every year. We're wondering if there is

         13  any way we can sort of make that an understood that

         14  every -- what is it July?

         15                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Every request

         16  should be that easy. Certainly.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay. So you will

         18  just make sure we get it by --

         19                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: You'll get

         20  that by --

         21                 MR. WINKER: The statement is due at

         22  the end of the fiscal year. The actual payments

         23  aren't due through the end of the fiscal year

         24  through August 15. So, I can in early -- at the end

         25  of July, I can supply for the three quarters, August
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          2  15, I can supply four quarters.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: All right. We can

          4  work on the date and changing the date. If your

          5  staff and Chris Collins can work on it, and

          6  obviously it should be sent to the speaker. And then

          7   --

          8                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Sure.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: -- As well the

         10  committee.

         11                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: So, let's work

         12  on a date that you'll get a complete set of numbers

         13  and we certainly don't need to stand on formality of

         14  you having to request if we know it's due every

         15  year.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I just want to keep

         17  asking you questions until you have to use all of

         18  those folks over there. Because they look very tired

         19  and bored.

         20                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: They've been

         21  working very hard in getting 311 up and running.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I'm sure they have

         23  been working hard. And many times, we have the

         24  commissioners come here to testify and they bring

         25  these lovely large staffs with them and they don't
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          2  get a chance to talk and show their stuff. But we

          3  know up here how much work all you guys have done.

          4  To make him look good.

          5                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Thanks.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And we appreciate

          7  it. You have some questions for the staff. Council

          8  Member Brewer.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Well, the

         10  great Al Leidner is in the audience. So that's my

         11  hero. This is not necessarily for your budget

         12  savings. But having sat through these hearings, this

         13  is the question. On the telecom City wide issues,

         14  some of the contracts through the Department of

         15  Finance, we learned in outsourcing that the

         16  contracts call for messenger service. In other

         17  words, the outsource, for whatever reason, is in

         18  Wilmington, Delaware. It's a data entry. And the

         19  data entry person couriers every week to Finance at

         20  the cost of -- I think it's every week, but the cost

         21  monthly is $2,500 a year. I could e- mail this

         22  information backward and forward and we asked the

         23  contractor, would you mind e- mailing? No, no

         24  problem. But the contract calls for courier service.

         25  That's what I mean about Telecom City wide.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: That's

          3  something to look at.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I mean all the

          5  contracts, if they -- it's a big City, there are a

          6  lot of contracts. I don't think we should be paying

          7  courier service. A small amount, but maybe it adds

          8  up. Number two, language. When we were speaking the

          9  other day to one of the hotlines which, I think,

         10  it's an HRA line. I can't remember which one. It is

         11  one of the ones that -- it's not the hunger, but

         12  it's another one. It's the suicide line. It's not

         13  coming over. Good reasons for it not too et cetera.

         14  But, they have languages. So I said to them, are you

         15  working with 311? Is there a cost savings? Are you

         16  both contracting out, et cetera? Again, is there a

         17  cost savings? There are some lines that

         18  understandably cannot come over to 311 for special

         19  reasons. What are you doing in terms of saving money

         20  on the language contracting?

         21                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: We as -- since

         22  we're expecting to use the language line quite a

         23  bit, we negotiated at a very low price. In fact, it

         24  was two cents per minute lower than what any agency

         25  had been receiving. We negotiated that contract as a
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          2  City wide contract. We've already had discussions

          3  with HRA about potentially utilizing that service

          4  and our pricing. Then, again, because we've got much

          5  higher volume, we should all be able --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Then the

          7  question is the other line should be part of

          8  becoming that discussion. They had not thought of

          9  that.

         10                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: We've had

         11  discussions with the HRA folks and they --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: All right.

         13  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Council was

         15  inquiring, the public service commission is re-

         16  doing their rules for the cable franchises now? Are

         17  you guys, number one, weighing in on it? Have you

         18  been asked to weigh in on it and do you expect to?

         19                 MR. WINKER: We received a copy of the

         20  rules. We are reviewing them and the response is due

         21  in late April. I believe it's April 26. Currently,

         22  we intend to reply and we can share a copy of our

         23  comments with Council.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: That would be very

         25  helpful. Also, we've requested a copy of the RFP --
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          2  RFP's, I believe you said there were two for the

          3  roofs and street lamps?

          4                 MR. WINKER: Those haven't been issued

          5  yet.

          6                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: No, the roof

          7   -- the one for the Department of Ed.

          8                 MR. WINKER: It has, I'm sorry.

          9                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: The other one

         10  is under development has not been released yet. That

         11  is for the street pole.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So then just the

         13  one?

         14                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Yeah.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay. Again, we

         16  appreciate your work and, of course, all your

         17  staff's work. And we know how excited you are about

         18  the 311 system. We thank you for answering all the

         19  questions. We are very interested in it. And as time

         20  moves on and you basically fulfill the mandates of

         21  the 311 system, if you can keep us up to date, that

         22  would be very helpful. Obviously, it's something

         23  that affects every one of our constituents and if we

         24  can be helpful in getting that number out --

         25                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Great.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Obviously, the more

          3  we get that number out, the better it is for

          4  everyone.

          5                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Everyone,

          6  right.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So, we would

          8  appreciate any help you can give us.

          9                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Right.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: In making sure that

         11  it reaches the constituents as well. I thank you and

         12  your staff for coming here today. Thank you for your

         13  time.

         14                 COMMISSIONER MENCHINI: Thank you.

         15  Thank you, everyone.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: We have one member

         17  of the public, I believe, who wants to testify on

         18  DoITT. Is that correct? Mr. Garber? Joseph Garber?

         19  He's coming. Mr. Garber, do you want to testify? Is

         20  this on DoITT?

         21                 MR. GARBER: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: If I can ask DoITT

         23  to quietly move or you can stay and listen to the

         24  rest of the testimony. Whichever you prefer. Thank

         25  you very much. Mr. Garber?

                                                            68

          1  COMMITTEE ON LAND USE

          2                 MR. GARBER: Good afternoon. My name

          3  is Joseph Garber. I'm the Corresponding Secretary to

          4  Civil Service Merit Council. I have some knowledge

          5  of DoITT. I understand that years ago prior to

          6  DoITT's existence, they used to publish a City wide

          7  telephone directory listing all the City employees.

          8  I'd like to see if DoITT can possibly continue this.

          9  Now listening briefly to the testimony on the 311

         10  system, I think there was some conflict from what I

         11  heard of what the DC37 testified at the Police

         12  Department hearings stating that there were police

         13  department personnel and it was mostly uniform

         14  members of the service manning the 311. So I think

         15  there has to be some oversight investigation to see

         16  how the 311 system is working. But I'm also

         17  concerned how far in depth of each City agency does

         18  the 311 operators have to give direct information to

         19  members of the public. They might have the general

         20  number or do they have more in depth numbers. So, I

         21  would suggest maybe your committee under foil or any

         22  other means get copies of any published City

         23  directory and maybe come out with some guide that

         24  the 311 call answering center operators should have.

         25  Thank you for your listening.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you very

          3  much. Chairman Robert Tierney, please, at Landmarks

          4  Commission. And if one of the Sergeant of Arms could

          5  notify Councilman Felder who I think might be in the

          6  hallway there that Chair Tierney is going to

          7  testify. That would be helpful. Councilman Felder is

          8  chair of the Landmarks Subcommittee.  Mr. Chairman,

          9  we welcome you. I believe this is the first time

         10  testifying in front of this committee for you.

         11                 MR. TIERNEY: Yes, it is.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And we welcome you.

         13  Obviously, we work very closely with the Landmarks

         14  Commission on a daily basis to make sure that our

         15  neighborhoods remain in tact and to make sure that

         16  we are on the same page. We appreciate you being

         17  here today. I must apologize for the wait. I know

         18  you had quite a wait. I must apologize.

         19                 MR. TIERNEY: Thank you. No problem at

         20  all.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: We thank you for

         22  being here.

         23                 MR. TIERNEY: Thank you. I have Rhonda

         24  Wist (phonetic) who is the Executive Director of

         25  Landmark Commission here with me. Good afternoon,
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          2  Chairwoman Katz and Honorable other Council Members.

          3  I am Bob Tierney, Chairman of the Landmarks

          4  Preservation Commission.

          5                 The Landmarks Commission is the City

          6  agency responsible for identifying and protecting

          7  the City's historical, aesthetic and cultural

          8  heritage. The Commission carries out its mission by

          9  designating individual landmarks, interior

         10  landmarks, scenic landmarks, and historic districts

         11  and regulating proposed work on buildings under our

         12  jurisdiction within those districts. To date, the

         13  Commission has in its lifetime since 1965 has

         14  designated 1,095 individual landmarks and 75

         15  historic districts with ten district extensions

         16  throughout the five boroughs.

         17                 While we remain committed to

         18  designating important landmarks in Manhattan,

         19  particularly in Lower Manhattan at this time, we are

         20  concentrating also on the other boroughs. The rest

         21  of the City. And that's something I've said from the

         22  beginning. When I came here now, two and half months

         23  ago or so, we recently designated the Richmond Hill

         24  Republican Club in Queens (this is by way of

         25  example), 121 Heberton Avenue in Staten Island, 586
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          2  City Island Avenue in the Bronx and Childs

          3  Restaurant in Coney Island. As you know, Queens,

          4  Staten Island and the Bronx have relatively fewer

          5  landmarks than Manhattan and Brooklyn. And we're in

          6  the preliminary stages of our designation process

          7  now for landmarking several historic districts in

          8  these boroughs including and I don't mean this just

          9  by quick example. This is not a complete list

         10  hardly. It's just illustrative. And Councilman

         11  McMahon who had been here earlier, we had spoken to

         12  him and gone out to see a couple of potential

         13  districts in Staten Island, including Ellicott Place

         14  and then we were up in the Bronx sometime ago to

         15  look at Fieldston. In Queens, we're also actively

         16  pursing individual designations such as the Bowne

         17  Street Church in Flushing. I look forward to working

         18  with everyone on this committee and everyone on the

         19  Council to further the Commission's efforts to

         20  educate potential homeowners and residents about the

         21  benefits of landmark designation. And we believe the

         22  benefits outweigh the downsides. People come forward

         23  with sometimes ideas of a downside or maybe

         24  sometimes a misconception. We think through our

         25  outreach and our education, we can show that the
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          2  benefits -- this clearly come down on the benefit

          3  side for lots of reasons.

          4                 In addition to designating landmarks,

          5  the Commission regulates work on buildings that have

          6  already been designated as landmarks. In the first

          7  six months and again, by way of illustration of this

          8  fiscal year, we've received 3,844 applications for

          9  work on designated properties and took 3,987

         10  actions. Which when I saw this figure, I thought

         11  that's amazing. We're actually doing more than we're

         12  even being asked to. But it's a statistical

         13  elaboration not as startlingly as it sounds. But we

         14  are actively out there monitoring these properties,

         15  receiving applications for preservation and actively

         16  pursing it all. And then, so that to get back to the

         17  question of whether it's a benefit and part of our

         18  process is to show that we're streamlining the

         19  regulatory process as best we can for homeowners.

         20  We're amending and continuing to enact new and

         21  amended rules. We're currently working on two master

         22  plans. Again, by way of illustration. One for the

         23  Douglaston Historic District in Queens and another

         24  for store fronts on certain commercial streets in

         25  the Upper West Side and the Central Park West
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          2  Historic District. There are two. That process is a

          3  thoughtful one where property owners, community

          4  groups, community boards, preservation groups,

          5  member of the Council, other interested  parties

          6  come forth and say, here's how we'd like to --

          7  here's a regulatory scheme that we think can keep

          8  this district intact with a minimum of bureaucracy,

          9  if you will, and red tape on behalf of the

         10  commercial property owners. And we think these

         11  master plans are a good way to go. And we've been

         12  successful in several that we've done to date and

         13  we're trying to more. Next line I have here is also

         14  in the NoHo Historic District. We're also looking a

         15  store front trying to develop a master plan for

         16  commercial store fronts.

         17                 As always, and I just touched on this

         18  a little bit, but the Commission has been increasing

         19  it's outreach efforts to community members and

         20  owners of landmark properties. We attend, of course,

         21  our staff and myself when I can, as much as I can,

         22  attend meetings in the historic district

         23  neighborhoods. And potential historic district

         24  neighborhoods such as the Upper East Side. Most

         25  recently, Gansevoort Market, Fieldston, as I
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          2  mentioned before, to discuss the regulatory

          3  procedures with homeowners. And to go through the

          4  process of landmarking. What it means. How you

          5  arrive at that. What goes into the process. And

          6  then, if designated, what that does to the

          7  properties and the owners going forward.

          8                 The outreach has also included

          9  publications of brochures. I think we have a new

         10  one. And I got some here later for Jackson Heights

         11  commercial storefront for property owners. So, once

         12  you get these guidelines in place and they became

         13  relatively uniform and easy to comply with and

         14  hopefully as inexpensive as we can do and still

         15  achieve the desired results of preservation and then

         16  we put them into forms that are -- that can be

         17  easily disseminated. Hopefully, we get voluntary

         18  compliance. So, the enforcement side of the agency

         19  was always -- has its budget problems and budget

         20  constraints is freed up to do some of the more

         21  difficult if not egregious violation that we can

         22  actually have more time to crack down on.

         23                 We require the applicants for

         24  Certificate of Appropriateness applications to make

         25  a proposal to the community board. This is all going
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          2  back to general outreach for a minute. In addition,

          3  I learned once I got over there that the briefing

          4  that I get for the public hearings is extensive.

          5  It's a two to three hour extensive project by

          6  project analysis. All the drawings, all the mock

          7  ups, the photographs, the history and I go through

          8  it meticulously. And then I found, and this is on a

          9  Thursday, for a hearing that's coming up on Tuesday.

         10  I then found that the next day, all day Friday,

         11  before every public hearing on Tuesday, the doors

         12  are open in that briefing room for any interested

         13  parties to come in to look at what I've just seen.

         14  To go over every drawing, every architectural and

         15  basically there are no secrets. And there shouldn't

         16  be, of course. But it's there for the Historical

         17  District Council, the Community Boards, anyone who

         18   -- the owners. Anybody who has an interest in

         19  what's going to be coming up on Tuesday. So, it's

         20  not that -- it's very  helpful. Because then the

         21  process that takes place, the public hearing tends

         22  to be much more meaningful. There's no surprises.

         23  People have seen what's coming forward. They've had

         24  a chance to digest it, to ask questions before

         25  walking in the room. It's a terrific way to -- it's
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          2  open government at its best as far as I can see. We

          3  clearly, obviously want to continue it.

          4                 Going to the website for a minute.

          5  And I'm almost toward the end of the prepared

          6  testimony. This has become as in many agencies and I

          7  guess you heard a little bit maybe from Gino before

          8  I got up here. The website is an increasingly

          9  important communications tool for the agency. It's

         10  regularly updated with the public hearing calendar,

         11  the designation hearing schedule and maps of our

         12  existing and proposed historic districts. We are in

         13  the first steps of a project to put our designation

         14  reports on the website so users will have instant

         15  access to our research on each New York City

         16  landmark. In fact, we spent a couple of hours with

         17  Gino and the people that were up here yesterday

         18  afternoon to get his direct involvement in the

         19  systems in these efforts. And he was extremely

         20  cooperative. So I'm hopeful that we can -- savings

         21  us a little -- some budget expenditures really move

         22  up the technology in a way that Gino can help us on

         23  and everybody benefits. Right now though, users can

         24  download application forms, instructions for filing,

         25  and they get information about materials that need
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          2  to be submitted in any application. Our goal is to

          3  make the filing process even easier for homeowners.

          4                 Finally, we have the Guide to New

          5  York City landmarks, where we're now in the process

          6  of putting out the third edition. Everybody's

          7  yelling at me to finish the preface and gotta get to

          8  the printer and so on and so forth. So I'm very

          9  aware of that. And that too is a very helpful public

         10  outreach document, if you will, detailing the

         11  landmark districts, the maps, and so on. Very

         12  helpful.

         13                 Enforcement. Quickly toward the end

         14  here, we received approximately 500 complaints in

         15  the first six months of this fiscal year. And each

         16  one is investigated by the enforcement staff and in

         17  the same period, we issued 531 warning letters, 170

         18  notices of violation. And approximately two- thirds

         19  of the warning letters result in owners applying

         20  expeditiously to us to remedy the violations to

         21  address them to legalize them, if you will. So you

         22  get a better good compliance rate and where we can't

         23  it, we go into ECB. We up -- we do a second notice.

         24  We double the fines, triple the fines. And we can

         25  and should be aggressive particularly in egregious
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          2  cases. One thing to not knowingly -- to knowingly --

          3  unknowingly fail to comply with some technical

          4  requirements of landmark. It's another thing to just

          5  blithely go ahead knowing that you're not complying.

          6  Knowing you are in a landmark district and try to

          7  sneak some things by. So we're very tough on that.

          8                 Lastly, the fiscal 2004 budget is

          9  approximately $3.28 million dollars with $2.7

         10  million in city funds and $590,000.00 in non- City

         11  funds. The Commission is exploring how to -- this is

         12  the last sentence which is probably of some interest

         13  to you. The Commission is exploring how to raise

         14  revenue through a schedule of fees. And currently,

         15  as everybody knows, the Commission does not charge

         16  fees. Thank you very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you

         18  Commissioner -- Mr. Chairman. Your last sentence

         19  starts what I wanted to ask about.

         20                 MR. TIERNEY: Sure.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And then I will

         22  turn it over to Councilman Felder. But also just to

         23  Councilman Monserrate has joined us. And Councilman

         24  Martinez was here. He is dividing his time between

         25  one hearing and another. So, as many of us are and
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          2  Councilman Joel Rivera, our Majority Leader has

          3  joined us as well from the Bronx.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: I apologize

          5  for being in and out.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: We already

          7  acknowledged you.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: I just

          9  wanted to say that there's a hearing next door and

         10  I've been trying to --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Yes, of course.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: -- Do both.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Yeah, many of our

         14  Council Members are going from hearing to hearing.

         15                 MR. TIERNEY: Yeah, understandable

         16  completely.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Don't take it

         18  personally.

         19                 MR. TIERNEY: No.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: The question I

         21  wanted to ask was about fees. Landmarks, you know,

         22  the LPC last year anticipated -- this year

         23  anticipated a revenue in the amount of $525,000.00

         24  for this fiscal year.

         25                 MR. TIERNEY: Right.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Obviously, it was

          3  removed. This amount was removed from the revenue

          4  budget in the anticipation that this legislation

          5  wouldn't be passed, obviously. That we would not

          6  have the fees. In the fiscal year 2004, the budget,

          7  my understanding is it includes $1.05 million --

          8                 MR. TIERNEY: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: -- Dollars for

         10  fees. I guess the question would be why hasn't --

         11                 MR. TIERNEY: I believe the first

         12  figure was -- the $500 odd was a six month figure.

         13  And so next year they're -- they're plugging in

         14  another million small '05 for --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I guess what factor

         16  is lead to the delay in the passage and obviously

         17  you've been hearing a lot from the community -- the

         18  preservation community --

         19                 MR. TIERNEY: Exactly.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: -- In opposition to

         21  it.

         22                 MR. TIERNEY: Yeah.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Did that have

         24  anything to do with it?

         25                 MR. TIERNEY: Some of that happened,
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          2  of course, before I started. And I understand that

          3  it did. That it was -- in part it was controversial

          4  because there was some community opposition. Some

          5  opposition to it from preservation groups and

          6  others, homeowners. And I think it was explored,

          7  moved forward, but not forward enough. And then

          8  basically dropped for that reason. I think it wasn't

          9  time to be able to put it together for that --

         10  during that period of time.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Are you

         12  anticipating a certain type of fee structure?

         13                 MR. TIERNEY: I've look at it again

         14  since I've gotten there and we're obviously going to

         15  have to make another run at it. I think it's

         16  something that OMB expects. That the City, it's no

         17  secret that what you all have been doing here from

         18  day to day in these budget hearings and you know

         19  better than anyone that these are very difficult

         20  times. Trying to do more with less and trying to

         21  plug revenue holes where possible. And everyone is

         22  sort of stepping up and doing a little bit more. And

         23  we hope that we can devise a fee structure that

         24  would -- would allow us to char -- to assess people

         25  who avail themselves as the Landmark Commission

                                                            82

          1  COMMITTEE ON LAND USE

          2  Services, if you will. To pay an amount that helps

          3  fund those services. Hopefully, not a back breaking

          4  amount, clearly. And it can't be. There are limits

          5  on it, of course, in terms of what's a tax and

          6  what's a fee. But we've given some thought to it.

          7  Try to make it as simple as possible to administer

          8  as unonerous as possible. To use a non word. And to

          9  try to make and to carve out intelligent exceptions

         10  that won't discourage people from wanting to be

         11  landmarked. We don't want -- that would be our goal.

         12  And we're working on the mechanisms of it now.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you very.

         14  Councilman Felder?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you. I

         16  want to welcome you again. It's a pleasure having

         17  you here.

         18                 MR. TIERNEY: Thank you, Chairman

         19  Felder. And Subcommittee Chairman.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you. But

         21  even when you're not here, we're delighted having

         22  Diane. She does a wonderful job.

         23                 MR. TIERNEY: Thank you very much.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: And you should

         25  feel safe not coming.
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          2                 MR. TIERNEY: That's means for a yes.

          3  You'll tell me if it's otherwise.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Two questions

          5  I have for you. One is the additional money that you

          6  got from the federal government. The $335,758.00

          7  which on your schedule, it's the plug figure. The

          8  financial overview for other than OTPS went up

          9  exactly that amount and that's exactly the amount

         10  that went up in your funding summary for the same

         11  periods. They went from 546 to 932 which reflects

         12  that $335 -- $385,000.00, I'm sorry. $385,000.00 in

         13  the federal funds. You say that's it a single

         14  community development block grant. What are the

         15  restrictions to that money? I mean, how -- is it a

         16  one time --

         17                 MR. TIERNEY: Apparently, some of it

         18  gets rolled over each year. While we do get the

         19  single CD community development block grant which is

         20  then utilized for grants for preservation grants

         21  around the City to various projects, various homes,

         22  various landmark properties. Often times the

         23  applications come in at one fiscal year, they aren't

         24  funded until the next. And then sometimes aren't

         25  even paid out until the third year. So it is a
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          2  constant roll over process. But I believe the number

          3  tends to stay fairly constant in the range that you

          4  described. I don't fully understand the mechanism --

          5  the fiscal mechanism of the roll over. But I'm told

          6  that that is the reason there is that lag and that

          7  it appears in our budget every year is for that

          8  reason. Because we can't spend it all.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I must have

         10  not made my question clear.

         11                 MR. TIERNEY: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: There's no

         13  lag. I mean there may be a lag in the applications

         14  as to where the money goes. But in one period,

         15  fiscal 2003, you got a $385,518.00 grant, one shot.

         16  That's what it seems. It represents a 71 percent

         17  increase in federal funds and it says here that it's

         18  entirely a single community development block grant.

         19  That you got one year. That period. If I understand

         20  correctly and you use that, I just want to know what

         21  restrictions, if any, there are on that money.

         22  Because I see that most of it went from maintenance

         23  and repairs of landmark facades, $49,000.00 was used

         24  for planning and management. You don't have those

         25  numbers. I have them.
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          2                 MR. TIERNEY: I know.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: That's the way

          4  I ask you a question.

          5                 MR. TIERNEY: I know that. I know

          6  that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: If you feel

          8  uncomfortable --

          9                 MR. TIERNEY: I don't feel

         10  uncomfortable.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: No? Give me a

         12  little more time.

         13                 MR. TIERNEY: I'm going to try one

         14  more time. I think some of those monies go directly

         15  to grants. And some of them go to funding the

         16  positions in the agency that administer the grants,

         17  both personal services and other than personal

         18  services.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I have to

         20  interrupt you.

         21                 MR. TIERNEY: Yes, sir.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: By the time

         23  I'm finished, you'll feel uncomfortable.

         24                 MR. TIERNEY: Okay. I'm going to ask

         25  Rhonda to take a stab at it.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: It seems

          3  clearly from the stuff that the wonderful land use

          4  division prepared. That this $385,000.00 grant, one

          5  time grant, was entirely allocated for OTPS other

          6  than personal services. That's what it seems to me

          7  because I'm looking at the grid and the grid shows

          8  that every year, you're about $465,000.00, hovering

          9  in that area, for OTPS. In fiscal '03, it goes up

         10  exactly $300 -- according to my numbers about

         11  $386,000.00. Exactly that amount. And that's exactly

         12  the amount that you -- I'm $500.00 off. $400.00 off.

         13  That was that one time grant from the federal

         14  government. So I just want to know, unless you tell

         15  me otherwise, it --

         16                 MR. TIERNEY: Sure.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: -- Seems clear

         18  that it was a one shot deal that you got from the

         19  federal government. Is that true?

         20                 MR. TIERNEY: I'm going to ask Rhonda

         21  Wist to --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Good.

         23                 MR. TIERNEY: -- Answer this.

         24                 MS. WIST: Thank you. No. We wish that

         25  we got $300 extra thousand dollars from the federal
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          2  government. Every year we get funded approximately

          3  the same amount of money which is approximately

          4  $180,000.00 for our grant program.

          5                 In addition to, as the Chair said,

          6  funding for the person who administers the grant

          7  program, et cetera. These figures are done in such a

          8  way so that the money that is rolled over from

          9  fiscal year to fiscal year does not appear July 1.

         10  But there's a lag. So that extra money is money that

         11  was previously ear marked for grants. The grants

         12  that we administer are CD grants, so they have to

         13  follow all of the requirements of the federal

         14  government. They are to go to low and moderate

         15  income homeowners, or official not for profit

         16  institutions. They need to be landmark buildings or

         17  buildings in historic districts and therefore,

         18  facade repair -- deteriorated facades. So that's

         19  what the money is for. But we did not get additional

         20  money in the fiscal year.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Okay. Excuse

         22  me for a minute.

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I'm acting

         24  as Chair. I just didn't want to sit there. You want

         25  to sit here. All right. Can we move -- Good
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          2  afternoon, Mr. Chairman.

          3                 MR. TIERNEY: Good afternoon.

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I'm only

          5  temporarily acting as Chair while our Chairwoman

          6  will be back in a minute. And I actually just want

          7  to take this opportunity during the lag to welcome

          8  you into your role as Chairman.

          9                 MR. TIERNEY: Thank you.

         10                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I hope

         11  it's as comfortable as you expected it to be.

         12                 MR. TIERNEY: It is until the last

         13  five minutes. No, I'm kidding. He is succeeding.

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I would

         15  also echo that Diane Jacker (phonetic) is an

         16  excellent representative.

         17                 MR. TIERNEY: Thank you.

         18                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: And we

         19  make her come thoroughly prepared.

         20                 MR. TIERNEY: Absolutely.

         21                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Councilman

         22  Koppell, do you want to ask a couple questions --

         23  Yeah, thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I want to

         25  also welcome, Mr. Tierney, who I know for many years
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          2   --

          3                 MR. TIERNEY: Sure do.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: -- From our

          5  mutual associations in Albany. It's good to see you

          6  in the new role.

          7                 MR. TIERNEY: I think it's better for

          8  both of us to be down here.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I note you

         10  mentioned in your statements specifically the study

         11  of Fieldston. That's of great interest to me in my

         12  district. In fact, I live there.

         13                 MR. TIERNEY: Sure.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Do you have

         15  any specific plans with respect to Fieldston for

         16  this fiscal -- coming fiscal year?

         17                 MR. TIERNEY: We've actually been, as

         18  I said, there was a public information meeting which

         19  I believe you were in it. It was before I was

         20  around. But I understand you were there.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I'm aware of

         22  it.

         23                 MR. TIERNEY: You're aware of that.

         24  And then, myself, was up there within the last two

         25  to three weeks for a site visit. An extraordinary
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          2  area. And we have our research department actively

          3  engaged in pulling together the history and the

          4  architectural and the significance of the district.

          5  Talking to some interested parties up there. And

          6  it's my hope, intention to move forward on it. I

          7  find everything I've seen so far to be extremely

          8  interesting and the kind of thing that one would

          9  want to find in a proposed historical district. The

         10  process would officially take hold when and if it's

         11  calendared as a district. So called calendaring.

         12  Here's the map, and this is what we propose to do.

         13  It goes on a calendar and then public hearings, or a

         14  formal public hearing would be held in Landmarks.

         15                 You say this fiscal year?  I don't

         16  know. We just started a couple of others. But I'm

         17  looking at it very seriously. It would be in the

         18  relatively near future, but I can't say --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I meant this

         20  forthcoming fiscal year. Starting on July 1st.

         21                 MR. TIERNEY: My sense would be, if

         22  things continue along the path they're going, that

         23  would be the likelihood, that the process would

         24  begin and we would take it through into that time

         25  period.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I would urge

          3  it and there's difference of opinion in the

          4  community on it. I happen to personally -- I've

          5  indicated my support. My sense is that there's a

          6  majority in favor. But there's also a substantial

          7  number who are not. Some of it, I think, through

          8  misinformation. But I would urge you to move ahead

          9  as rapidly as possible --

         10                 MR. TIERNEY: Thank you.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: -- Because we

         12  see some changes in the community that are of

         13  concern. And I think the landmarking would -- or the

         14  historic district status would be a way to monitor

         15  and deal with some of these changes. So I urge you

         16  to move ahead.

         17                 MR. TIERNEY: Thank you.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Although it's

         19  not going to be a totally smooth road. There will be

         20  problems. I think overall, the majority of the

         21  residents of the area ultimately will be supportive.

         22                 MR. TIERNEY: Good. Thank you,

         23  Councilman.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I think Councilman

         25  Felder had some follow- up.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Yeah, thank

          3  you. How are you?

          4                 MR. TIERNEY: What's that?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: How are you?

          6                 MR. TIERNEY: Compared to what?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I'm just

          8  kidding. I just -- I think there seems to be

          9  differing opinions about the numbers that finance

         10  staff got from OMB --

         11                 MR. TIERNEY: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: -- And the

         13  numbers that you're furnishing me. And I'm just

         14  asking the Chairwoman if we can somehow with our

         15  finance staff and the people from Landmarks, if we

         16  could get this item straightened out. And we can get

         17  the numbers. I'd appreciate it. I don't want to

         18  spend more of your time. I just have one other

         19  question. In terms of federal money that has come

         20  into the City as a result of September 11,

         21  especially with all the many landmarks that are in

         22  this area, has any money -- has any money gone --

         23  come into the City? Been earmarked specifically to

         24  help protect or restore landmarks and if the answer

         25  is no, because the answer is no based on what I see.
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          2  So I'm not even going to let you answer the

          3  question. Since the answer is no, why not? Now, if

          4  you say yes, then you'll shock me.

          5                 MR. TIERNEY: Money has not come to

          6  our agency for that purpose. You're absolutely

          7  right.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Good. That was

          9  the right answer. Why not?

         10                 MR. TIERNEY: Money has -- But, money

         11  has come to -- money, I believe I'm correct in

         12  stating this, to an umbrella group of

         13  preservationist minded people including the

         14  Municipal Arts Society of Landmark Conservancy. They

         15  had produced and maybe you all have seen it. A study

         16  of Lower Manhattan projects -- Lower Manhattan

         17  landmarks endangered buildings, threatened buildings

         18  and some of the monies use -- the funding use to

         19  prepare that study which has been shared with us. We

         20  have our own study too which we done independent of

         21  that. But the results of that study, there are

         22  targeting, if you will, of Lower Manhattan

         23  properties that might be at risk. Has been brought

         24  to our attention and brought to the LMCC's

         25  attention, to City hall's attention, and so on. So,
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          2  you've raised to me a good question about those --

          3  about funding for those purposes, if any. I know

          4  there are two immediately endangered landmarks

          5  structures that over near the former World Trade

          6  Center. One is the Verizon Building which is

          7  currently being restored. And another is 90 West

          8  Street which is also in the process of being brought

          9  back to life. Somebody is going to tell me that

         10  maybe we do have FEMA money.

         11                 MS. WIST: Money  -- landmarks down

         12  there.

         13                 MR. TIERNEY: We do have some? We will

         14  have some.

         15                 MS. WIST: It happened.

         16                 MR. TIERNEY: We did?

         17                 MS. WIST: Yes.

         18                 MR. TIERNEY: I'm advised that before

         19  I was there in the agency that there was some FEMA

         20  money that was provided for the purpose of cleaning

         21  up the -- some of the landmarks that had been

         22  damaged. But I don't know the details of that,

         23  Councilman.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Again, it's

         25  been a long day and a lot of members have other
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          2  hearings. I'm asking and making a formal request --

          3                 MR. TIERNEY: Sure.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: -- To find out

          5  what money, if any --

          6                 MR. TIERNEY: We will.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: -- Came from

          8  the federal government specifically as result of

          9  September 11, to protect the landmarks that exist in

         10  this area. How much of it and I'm delighted that

         11  those groups, all of them got money. And I hope that

         12  the federal government gives them a lot more money.

         13  But that doesn't interest me as much as the money

         14  that you're getting. Because I'd like you to get

         15  more federal money.

         16                 MR. TIERNEY: Sure.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Because you're

         18  the ones in charge.

         19                 MR. TIERNEY: We have the authority.

         20  Maybe when we have this discussion if the Chairwoman

         21  is going to go in that direction about these other

         22  budget issues and then we'll wrap this in. And make

         23  sure that --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I would like

         25  that.
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          2                 MR. TIERNEY: That the FEMA issue is

          3  addressed and any other issue. And it's a

          4  constructive suggestion, obviously.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Yeah.

          6                 MR. TIERNEY: For the very reasons you

          7  stated.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Now if you

          9  want, we can hold a hearing especially on this item.

         10  Only if you request it.

         11                 MR. TIERNEY: Okay.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Because I want

         13  to make you happy.

         14                 MR. TIERNEY: Let me get the facts

         15  first.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Okay.

         17                 MR. TIERNEY: And then at the hearings

         18   --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I think when your

         20  staff talks to the finance staff about the

         21  discrepancy in the budget and what numbers are sort

         22  of off, if you can just give them basically the

         23  money that we're getting from FEMA as the Councilman

         24  suggested.

         25                 MR. TIERNEY: Sure.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And that way he is

          3  better able to decide whether or not the hearing is

          4  warranted.

          5                 MR. TIERNEY: Great.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Councilman? Okay.

          7  And who on your staff should the finance staff be in

          8  contact with on the --

          9                 MR. TIERNEY: I'm sorry.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Who on your staff

         11  does the finance so that we know who to call?

         12                 MR. TIERNEY: Rhonda Wist.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay. Any other

         14  questions from committee members? Chair Tierney,

         15  just quickly. The two master plans for the

         16  Douglaston Historic District in Queens and the

         17  storefronts on the Upper West Side --

         18                 MR. TIERNEY: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: -- Central Park

         20  West Historic District. Are these adopted as agency

         21  rules pursuant to CAPA?

         22                 MR. TIERNEY: They are. Yes, they are.

         23  So it's their hearings and opportunity for input and

         24  publication and the like. Yes, they are.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Great. Thank you.
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          2  We appreciate it. Any other questions from the

          3  committee? Chair

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Madam

          5  Chairwoman, if I might just chime in here?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Sure.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Commissioner,

          8  good afternoon or Chairman I should say.

          9                 MR. TIERNEY: Good afternoon.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: I just want to

         11  join up and those of my colleagues who have welcomed

         12  you on board into City government or to welcome you

         13  back. And let you know how much we appreciate the

         14  effort that you're putting into the Landmarks

         15  Preservation Commission and especially as someone

         16  from the outer boroughs, how much we appreciate your

         17  attention and focus on the outer boroughs as well.

         18  You're taking away my argument that Staten Island is

         19  the forgotten bureau at least in this area. Of

         20  course, we have in other areas, but we want to thank

         21  you very much. And just to ask the Pleasant Valley

         22  district study, the 95 Pleasant Valley -- the

         23  special project I think my brother had asked you

         24  about.

         25                 MR. TIERNEY: Oh, that. That's
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          2  definitely on --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Is that still

          4  under way?

          5                 MR. TIERNEY: -- The front burner. I

          6  believe we're having a hearing on it soon.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you very

          8  much.

          9                 MR. TIERNEY: If the owner will

         10  cooperate. We're not certain of that.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Council Member

         12  Brewer.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Just to thank

         14  you also for meeting with the minister at West Park

         15  Presbyterian Church. And I think as a community, I

         16  know it's not necessarily going to be landmarked,

         17  but we're going to do the best we can to raise the

         18  $6 million dollars to make it --

         19                 MR. TIERNEY: Great.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: -- To retain

         21  it and keep the parishioners with their ministry and

         22  the structure for the community. So thank you for

         23  meeting with the minister.

         24                 MR. TIERNEY: Thank you all for the

         25  involvement up there. Because I feel I want to do
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          2  everything possible to --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: It's a very

          4  big effort actually.

          5                 MR. TIERNEY: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you.

          7                 MR. TIERNEY: Thank you..

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Mr. Chairman, I'd

          9  like to thank you and your entire staff. We

         10  understand -- never mind, I'll say that in a moment.

         11  Councilman Vann.

         12                 MR. TIERNEY: Sure.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: I'd like to

         14  resume in just a very brief moment. A group came

         15  together from Crown Heights -- a group from block

         16  association. They came to my office. Previously, the

         17  Landmark Commissioner did the survey and so forth in

         18  this area and I wrote to you a couple of weeks ago.

         19  Maybe a few weeks ago to review their plans and see

         20  whether or not it could be considered. I don't

         21  recall that I've gotten a response to that letter.

         22                 MR. TIERNEY: But you will get a

         23  response as soon as I can -- it doesn't immediately

         24  pass my memory. Now I'll candidly admit it, but I

         25  will grab it this afternoon and look at it and be
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          2  sure you'll get a prompt response and we'll look at

          3  that.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: I'd appreciate

          5  that. Thank you very much.

          6                 MR. TIERNEY: Sure.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Again, I'd like to

          8  thank you and your entire staff. We know how much

          9  work goes into your testimony and we appreciate

         10  their work and their diligence as well as your own.

         11  And we do welcome you to Landmark's Commission.

         12  You've been a great addition.

         13                 MR. TIERNEY: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.

         15                 MR. TIERNEY: Thank you so much,

         16  Chairwoman Katz, members.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Chairperson Burden

         18  just walked into the room and we would like to

         19  welcome her to testify. Madam Chair, we'd like to

         20  welcome you here in front of Land Use Committee.

         21  This is the second year that we've had the pleasure

         22  of having you testify. Just as the Chair of the

         23  Committee, I'd like to thank you and your office and

         24  your entire staff for being so open to us.

         25                 MS. BURDEN: Thank you, Madam Chair.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And for the good

          3  work that you've done in the last year. I thank you

          4  and welcome you here today. And if you could

          5  introduce Richard, that would be great.

          6                 MS. BURDEN: Good morning, all. Nice

          7  to see you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Why don't I

          9  introduce you to the committee in case. Just in

         10  case.

         11                 MS. BURDEN: That's great and I'll

         12  introduce you to my executive director as well.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Council Member

         14  Simcha Felder from Brooklyn.

         15                 MS. BURDEN: I see you, Council

         16  Member.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Council Member Joel

         18  Rivera, also the Majority Leader of the Council from

         19  the Bronx.

         20                 MS. BURDEN: Good afternoon.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Council Member Gail

         22  Brewer. Chris Collins you know as the Council to the

         23  Committee. Paul from Finance. He's the one who gives

         24  us all our numbers. Council Member Al Vann. Council

         25  Member Eric Gioia from Queens, and Council Member
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          2  Hiram Monserrate from Queens as well.

          3                 MS. BURDEN: Great. That's terrific.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Madam Chair.

          5                 MS. BURDEN: Madam Chair, thank you so

          6  much. I'd like to introduce to you who haven't met

          7  him, Richard Barth, whose the Executive Director of

          8  City Planning. I'd like to make my statement and

          9  then I'd be pleased to answer any questions. Good

         10  morning, Madam Chair and distinguished members of

         11  the Land Use Committee of the City Council. It is a

         12  pleasure to come before you today to discuss the

         13  Mayor's fiscal year 2004 preliminary budget and four

         14  year financial plan for the Department of City

         15  Planning. I want to begin by telling you what a

         16  privilege it is to work with each of you and to

         17  serve the City of New York as the Director of the

         18  Department of City Planning and the Chair of the New

         19  York City Planning Commission.

         20                 The primary mission of the Department

         21  of City Planning, as you know, is to prepare plans

         22  and policies that promote orderly growth and

         23  development of the City. Our strategic plan prepared

         24  a year ago which I have showed to many of you

         25  continues to be our guide as we plan the City's
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          2  future. In these difficult economic times, we

          3  believe it is more important than ever to

          4  aggressively pursue planning initiatives that will

          5  encourage desperately needed new housing, promote

          6  private business interest while at the same time

          7  protecting our precious neighborhoods. We also

          8  believe it is critical to improve our public open

          9  spaces and reconnect New Yorkers to their

         10  waterfront. Our agenda has been extremely ambitious

         11  and this past year has been very, very productive.

         12                 I'd like to give you a brief overview

         13  of some of our initiatives. We are working

         14  vigorously in collaboration with other City agencies

         15  to strengthen our regional and central business

         16  districts. We would believe that now in this period

         17  of fiscal constraint, is the best time to set the

         18  blueprint for the future and make the capital

         19  investments needed for the City to grow and thrive.

         20  These efforts in improving regional business

         21  districts include, Lower Manhattan, the Far West

         22  Side of Manhattan, Long Island City, and downtown

         23  Jamaica in Queens, downtown Brooklyn, and the Hub in

         24  the Bronx.

         25                 We are also advancing re- zoning and

                                                            105

          1  COMMITTEE ON LAND USE

          2  planning initiatives throughout the City that

          3  encourage new housing at appropriate scale and

          4  density while protecting the character of our

          5  neighborhoods. These housing proposals includes a

          6  110 block area in Park Slope in Brooklyn, the North

          7  Corona and Holliswood neighborhoods in Queens, City

          8  Island in the Bronx, and East Harlem and Frederick

          9  Douglass Boulevard in Manhattan. We are also working

         10  on several re- zoning applications submitted by the

         11  Staten Island Borough President which are intended

         12  to preserve the character of many Staten Island

         13  neighborhoods.

         14                 Our planning initiatives also seek to

         15  create new housing and promote business investment

         16  in under- utilized manufacturing areas consistent

         17  with the Mayor's ambitious plans for housing

         18  development. This past year, we certified re-

         19  zonings in these under- utilized manufacturing areas

         20  which include, Morrisania in the Bronx, Hudson

         21  Square in Manhattan. We are also advancing a re-

         22  zoning in Port Morris in the Bronx and are

         23  completing for public discussion an urban design and

         24  zoning master plan for the 115 -- I'm sorry, 1.5

         25  mile waterfront in Greenpoint and Williamsburg. And
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          2  that re- zoning also incorporates the adjacent

          3  neighborhoods. Up land neighborhoods of Greenpoint

          4  and Williamsburg.

          5                 Finally, and not least, we are taking

          6  the next steps for the planning and design for the

          7  re- use of the Fresh Kills Land Fill. This is just a

          8  portion of our ambitious agenda. And I look forward

          9  to working with each of you as we advance these and

         10  other planning initiatives.

         11                 Now, let us turn to the budget

         12  situation. The Department began fiscal year 2003

         13  with an expense budget of $19.8 million dollars

         14  which consisted of $8.3 million in City funds and

         15  $11.4 million in federal funds. Thus, 42 percent of

         16  that budget was City dollars and 58 percent was

         17  federal dollars. Of that $8.3 million in City or tax

         18  levy funding, approximately $2 million was a special

         19  appropriation for fiscal 2003 of which $1.8 million

         20  was to enable us to undertake the environmental

         21  review of a very large 415 block area in Jamaica

         22  Queens. When the current budget was adopted in last

         23  July 2002, the Department of City Planning

         24  authorized headcount was 249 staff positions of

         25  which 75 were tax levy funded and the remaining 174
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          2  were funded with federal dollars.

          3                 Since that budget adoption, the

          4  Department has undergone two financial plan changes

          5  pursuant to the directions of OMB. Last November,

          6  the November Financial Plan eliminated one position,

          7  reducing to 74 our tax levy funded positions. It

          8  also removed $55,000.00 in Personal Service accruals

          9  from the fiscal year 2003 budget. It shifted $1.8

         10  million of the aforementioned special appropriation

         11  to non- City funding. Taken together, the November

         12  Financial Plan reduced the $8.3 million City funded

         13  portion of the fiscal 2003 budget from $8.3 million

         14  to approximately $6.5 million. And it removed a

         15  total of $271,000.00 from the fiscal 2004 budget.

         16                 In the January 2003 plan, we were

         17  directed to reflect a further cash reduction of

         18  $172,000.00 in personal service accruals. This

         19  reduction was imposed in fiscal 2003 in lieu of a

         20  further reduction in fiscal 2004. However, this

         21  $172,000.00 will be re- imposed in 2005.

         22                 I would now like to turn to our

         23  proposal for 2004. City Planning's fiscal year 2004

         24  preliminary budget calls for a total allocation of

         25  $17.4 million dollars. $6 million in City tax levy
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          2  funds, which is 34 percent of the proposed budget

          3  and $11 million in federal funds or 66 percent of

          4  the proposed budget. This provides a total of 248

          5  staff in the Department; 74 City funded positions

          6  and 174 federal funded positions. However, we must

          7  continue to leave vacant five of the 74 City funded

          8  positions. These five positions are located in our

          9  technical review division.

         10                 On the revenue side, the Department

         11  is projecting revenues of $1.4 million to be

         12  realized in fiscal 2004 from income generated by

         13  ULURP and CEQR application fees, as well as revenue

         14  from publication and subscription sales. I cited in

         15  last year's hearing both ULURP and CEQR fees were

         16  increased in November 2002. The increased ULURP and

         17  CEQR fees have been somewhat offset by reduction in

         18  ULURP revenues due to the newly adopted text

         19  amendment which eliminated unenclosed sidewalk cafe

         20  applications at City Planning.

         21                 We have been able to achieve prior

         22  budget reductions with relatively minimal impact on

         23  our strategic planning efforts or on our ability to

         24  advance ULURP applications and CEQR review. These

         25  latter functions are entirely funded with City tax
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          2  levy dollars. As you are aware, City Planning is the

          3  lead agency for the review of private applications

          4  subject to ULURP as well as Department initiated

          5  applications and it must participate in the review

          6  of all City agency applications subject to ULURP.

          7  There are over 100 applications in the pipeline at

          8  any one time.

          9                 The most recent request by OMB

         10  received early this month calls for a further

         11  reduction of $283,000.00. Because of the significant

         12  belt tightening over this past year, this reduction

         13  could have a more significant impact on our

         14  operations than previous reductions. The proposed

         15  reduction would affect primarily those portions of

         16  the agency that are City tax levy funded such as

         17  environmental review as well as technical and land

         18  use review. As mentioned earlier, these operations

         19  enable us to advance all re- zoning applications in

         20  a timely manner and to ensure they meet quality

         21  standards. Although, it is premature to comment on

         22  how we will be able to meet this latest contingency

         23  reduction, we are committed to finding creative ways

         24  to do more with less.

         25                 In sum, we seek your support of the
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          2  proposed preliminary budget for fiscal 2004. It will

          3  enable the Department of City Planning to continue

          4  to realize an agenda vital to the long- term growth

          5  and viability of the City. And we look forward to

          6  your active participation in the planning process. I

          7  thank you all very much for your attention and look

          8  forward to any questions you may have. Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: We want to thank

         10  you for being here today. I just have a few

         11  questions. The first one would be just a follow up

         12  in your testimony. The five out of the 74 City

         13  funded positions that you're going to leave vacant.

         14  They are from the technical review division?

         15                 MS. BURDEN: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Is that five out of

         17  how many?

         18                 MS. BURDEN: It's five out of 74.

         19                 MR. BARTH: Seventy- four total.

         20                 MR. BURDEN: Seventy- four. So it

         21  would leave 69.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: How many in the

         23  technical review division is really the question?

         24                 MS. BURDEN: In the technical review

         25  division, do you know off hand?
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          2                 MR. BARTH: There's 12 that remain.

          3  Twelve filled positions that remain. So there were

          4  17 of prior to the early retirements and some other

          5  changes. Seventeen to 18.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Since all our ULURP

          7  applications go through the technical review

          8  division, how are you looking to pick up that slack?

          9  There's already, you know.

         10                 MS. BURDEN: It's going to be a little

         11  bit slower, but we are going to do the best we can.

         12  We all understand these are difficult times and we

         13  have to -- it's important to push these things

         14  through and it's something that we're all going to

         15  have to do to mobilize our resources and be

         16  productive as we can. We will not be able to be as

         17  quite as sufficient as we had hoped. We think moving

         18  things through quickly is important to every

         19  participant in the process. But, as I say, we'll do

         20  the best we can.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So you know the

         22  other 12 will pick up the slack as opposed to

         23  combining other positions?

         24                 MR. BARTH: I'd just like to add one

         25  thing. One thing is we've also -- we've shifted
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          2  certain responsibilities to where we have more staff

          3  in the borough offices. One set of responsibilities.

          4  And what we're looking at right now are some

          5  technological investments that will enable us to do

          6  some of these tasks with fewer resources. And we're

          7  discussing those needs. And will be discussing with

          8  OMB.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you, Richard.

         10  As of March 10, 2003, the Department of City

         11  Planning has increased its state funding by

         12  $135,000.00, I guess it is. It's community

         13  development funding by $800,000.00 and federal by

         14  $3.96 since the budget adaptation -- adoption. What

         15  sort of projects is the Department conducted with

         16  these additional funds? What kind of studies are

         17  being funded by the transportation studies grant?

         18  And also do you expect it to be at risk in the

         19  fiscal year 2004?

         20                 MS. BURDEN: Let me let my Executive

         21  Director, Richard Barth, answer those questions.

         22  He's prepared to do so.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I really wanted to

         24  hear from him.

         25                 MR. BARTH: Thank you. The state
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          2  grants are for waterfront revitalization program

          3  activities and for the Staten Island Land Fill.

          4  Additional progress for developing -- towards

          5  developing and use master plan. Those grants were

          6  received towards the end of fiscal year '02, and

          7  they spill over into '03. So that's why the budget

          8  had to be amended for '03 to account for those. With

          9  regard to the community development funds, that was

         10  primarily OTPS, those were technology for computer

         11  information services. Our geo support services. It

         12  came at the end of fiscal '02 when it was originally

         13  approved. Too late to actually, because of

         14  purchasing rules, to actually commit the monies

         15  during fiscal year '02. So during fiscal year '03,

         16  ultimately those funds were rolled over and then

         17  obligated. And we're now spending them to great

         18  importance.

         19                 Finally, with the transportation

         20  studies, I don't know how familiar you are with our

         21  transportation workman division. But it really falls

         22  into several broad categories. And the

         23  transportation funding includes very technical type

         24  of studies that have to do with contributing to the

         25  regional congestion management plan. We have several
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          2  ongoing efforts with the New York Metropolitan

          3  Transportation Council (NYMTECH) (phonetic). There

          4  is a group of studies that support that. We also

          5  have a team in our transportation division that does

          6  bikeway and pedestrian work. So things like

          7  advancing master plan for the Greenways, for

          8  pedestrian improvements for specific studies, we've

          9  got a number of ongoing efforts in all five boroughs

         10  in that category.

         11                 And finally, we have work that

         12  specifically looks at traffic issues as well as

         13  changing land use conditions in other special

         14  projects such as Lower Manhattan. We did a lot of

         15  work analyzing post 9/11, the traffic conditions

         16  downtown and specifically looking at ways for long-

         17  term investments to improve the -- Lower Manhattan's

         18  access to -- regional access specifically looking at

         19  commuter rail options. So, we have a wide range of

         20  activities that the transportation funding supports.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Final question

         22  before I turn it over to committee members. The

         23  zoning studies that you've been kind enough to

         24  update so many of us about, we notice a lot of them

         25  are in what I call the other boroughs besides
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          2  Manhattan. Can you just talk about the personnel

          3  shift, if there has been any, from the Central

          4  Office of the City Planning Commission to the other

          5  boroughs?

          6                 MS. BURDEN: I'll let Richard answer

          7  that specifically. We have because of the importance

          8  of actually undertaking these initiative in the

          9  other boroughs, we have beefed up the staff of each

         10  of the boroughs. And Richard will explain how we've

         11  been able to do that.

         12                 MR. BARTH: That's right. There's been

         13  a commitment to really have a strong borough office

         14  planning staff in all the boroughs. And we've done

         15  that in a couple of ways. One is there is certain

         16  six positions that have been funded through non-

         17  City sources and non- CD sources that have enabled

         18  us to hire really skilled urban designers and

         19  planners for each of the borough offices. We've also

         20  over the past year shifted with our vacancies in the

         21  borough offices, shifted some part- time people to

         22  full- time people. And over the past two or three

         23  years, there have been a number of new hires that

         24  have been brought into the agency as people have

         25  left and we've been able to really make a conscience
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          2  decision to have -- to ensure that the vacancies are

          3  filled in the borough offices.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you very

          5  much. Council Member Felder left. Council Member

          6  Nelson.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Okay. We were

          8  thinking along the same lines actually. There's a

          9  bullet here -- Welcome. We're advancing, re- zoning

         10  and planning initiatives throughout the City to

         11  encourage new housing at an appropriate scale while

         12  protecting the character of the neighborhood. But

         13  it's a thin line sometimes of where we're going with

         14  this, I guess. I wanted to get your explanation

         15  about this. Some of us want to protect the families

         16  that are growing themselves. In our areas we have

         17  some families that go up to ten, 15 members. And

         18  we'd like to protect them from being out priced and

         19  having to move to Jersey and other parts which is

         20  happening a lot as opposed to expanding their homes.

         21  Because in Brooklyn, it's very difficult to afford a

         22  $1 to $2 million home. In some cases, you know

         23  they're even more. Some of my sections. And if they

         24  can't afford that type of a price, they have to

         25  move. They have the money to move. And have a
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          2  mansion comparatively in Jersey compared to what

          3  they're willing to live in Brooklyn, if they could

          4  expand their houses.

          5                 MS. BURDEN: Right. So your question

          6  is -- give me your question.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Where were you

          8  going along these lines? It's like advancing re-

          9  zoning and planning appropriate scale, particularly

         10  the character of the neighborhoods. To me it's sort

         11  of downsizing or not allowing expansion too much.

         12                 MS. BURDEN: Well, you know, it's a

         13  careful balance. It really is neighborhood. Very

         14  specifically neighborhood by neighborhood. Your

         15  neighborhood may be different from Council Member

         16  Avella's neighborhood. Each one you have to look at

         17  it in their own context and get very, very

         18  significant input from the community board, from the

         19  elective officials and really find out what's a

         20  right balance in terms of providing housing

         21  opportunities. But it's something that doesn't

         22  burden the neighborhood in terms of scale or in

         23  terms of limiting opportunities. So, if there any

         24  specific issues that are in front of you right now

         25  that you're concerned about, we can address them.
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          2  Because actually we think is the best way. Because

          3  if your concerns maybe very specific to your

          4  neighborhood. So, can we be more helpful?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Yes,

          6  absolutely. We feel in our area, for instance,

          7  community board 12, 14 and so on, would be working

          8  with you hopefully to get the ability to expand

          9  without the BSA banging it back again.

         10                 MS. BURDEN: So, I think Richard would

         11  like to respond to that as well.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Sure.

         13                 MS. BURDEN: But, we would be pleased

         14  to meet with you and discuss those issues.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: I appreciate

         16  that.

         17                 MR. BARTH: I can answer because I've

         18  been at the Department far longer than Chair Burden.

         19  And in the prior years as you know, we have the

         20  Department through adoption by the commission and

         21  Council has adopted changes in certain parts of

         22  special Ocean Parkway District. In Midwood, to allow

         23  for the expansion of houses above and beyond what

         24  are permitted in other parts of the City. With the

         25  special mapping in the R3X District as well as some
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          2  rules in the Ocean Parkway District.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Yes.

          4                 MR. BARTH: To extend the side yards

          5  and the rear yard. So, there have been responded on

          6  a neighborhood basis in the past. And I think

          7  certainly we'll be glad to sit down with you and see

          8  if any further changes are warranted.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Great. I was a

         10  little worried about this. It seemed to be, perhaps,

         11  truncating where you were going before.

         12                 MR. BARTH: It's each neighborhood has

         13  different needs --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Sure.

         15                 MR. BARTH: -- And there's no magical

         16  formula for any neighborhood.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: No.

         18                 MR. BARTH: We'll have to sit down.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you.

         20  We'll be in touch.

         21                 MS. BURDEN: Not at all. Look forward

         22  to it. Thanks.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Councilman Avella?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: How are you?

         25  In reference to the five unfunded positions, how
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          2  much are we actually saving by not having people in

          3  those positions? What's the actual amount?

          4                 MS. BURDEN: The specific amount,

          5  Richard --

          6                 MR. BARTH: I believe it's

          7  $271,000.00.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Now, based

          9  upon your testimony, assuming that OMB -- you have

         10  to go along with OMB as recommending for this year

         11  of $283,000.00, which may mean as per your testimony

         12  further reductions in staff. So what we're talking

         13  about is possibly half a million dollars worth of

         14  staff reductions. Am I correct in assuming that?

         15                 MS. BURDEN: We're not -- we're really

         16  not sure yet. It's premature.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Okay.

         18                 MS. BURDEN: There -- it's just

         19  premature to say at the moment.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Well, I'm sure

         21  you would rather not have these staff reductions and

         22  I think I can speak for my colleagues that have

         23  significant zoning issues in their districts that

         24  the amount of money we're talking about in reducing

         25  the staff is certainly insignificant to the amount
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          2  of benefit that the City in New York will gain in

          3  preserving their neighborhoods. And at the same

          4  time, the reduction in staff will also affect your

          5  ability to obviously process ULURP applications from

          6  the private sector. And I'm sure you'll agree with

          7  me that that slows up new construction, new jobs in

          8  the City in New York, at a time when we need to

          9  booster that economy. So, I think -- I know the

         10  Mayor's representatives are here and I would

         11  certainly re- emphasize with them the fact that this

         12  cut damages the City's economy as well as preserving

         13  a residential sections of the City in New York. I

         14  would hope that OMB would review this and give you a

         15  full staff.

         16                 MS. BURDEN: We thank you for your

         17  support.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Councilman McMahon?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Thank you

         20  Madam Chairwoman. Good afternoon, Chairwoman Burden.

         21  It's good to see you again. I share the concerns

         22  that Chairman Avella has. Certainly like last year

         23  when we went through this process, I was amazed at

         24  the plausity of your budget and the work that your

         25  agency does. It's commendable. It's shocking to me
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          2  that a City as great as the City of New York puts

          3  such a small emphasis on planning. Yet it's

          4  apparent, unfortunately, as we look over time how

          5  there has been a lack of planning. And I think

          6  that's true in Manhattan. It certainly is very, very

          7  true in Staten Island where I come from. Where we've

          8  had, I think the most significant percentage growth

          9  in the City. And it's unfortunate. And it's

         10  certainly not this Mayor's fault. It's not your

         11  fault. It's something that's occurred over time. And

         12  as we were just discussing amongst ourselves, when

         13  we have budget crises, it's easier to cut City

         14  planning than it is to cut an emergency service

         15  because the people see that right away. Having said

         16  all that, I just will let you know we'll do whatever

         17  we can to fight on your end of the budget. But, I'm

         18  concerned that we're talking about the Mayor's very

         19  ambitious housing initiative. We're looking at an

         20  awful lot of applications of taking manufacturing

         21  properties and making them residential properties.

         22  That's necessary to create housing, I understand.

         23                 What we don't seem to be doing is

         24  comprehensive planning. In terms of the services

         25  that should be attended to if increase in housing.
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          2  So for instance in my district, zoning changes are

          3  sought or building applications are sought. And I

          4  know this is not your department, but sometimes it's

          5  part of a double package. And no one is saying,

          6  okay, where will these children go to school? Now, I

          7  know and I understand in Queens it's even worse and

          8  the rest of the City. But in Staten Island, I have

          9  20 elementary schools in my district and everyone is

         10  at a 100 percent or more capacity for school seat.

         11  And that capacity is not true and fair. If the

         12  Department of Education admits 100 percent, then

         13  it's probably 135 percent.

         14                 How can we get to a point where we do

         15  things more comprehensively? If the Mayor wants to

         16  convert attractive land from manufacturing or

         17  support an application to convert -- conversion from

         18  manufacturing to residential, don't we also have to

         19  say, well we have to build a school first. Or we

         20  have to at least plan a school? In my district, the

         21  whole sewer system -- sanitary system is totally

         22  under stress and many areas collapsing. In Council

         23  Member Lanza's district, in the South Shore houses

         24  were built without sewers. I don't know if my

         25  colleagues know that. But the whole southern end of
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          2  Staten Island was built with septic tanks. Because

          3  the city wasn't in the business of providing

          4  infrastructure. We gave out building permits. How do

          5  we get to that point in your opinion where we do

          6  things more comprehensively and is that a role for

          7  City planning or does it have to come from some

          8  where else? And before that, do you agree with my

          9  assessment that we have to look at things more

         10  comprehensively?

         11                 MS. BURDEN: Well, in a certain

         12  degree, yes. But, I don't think you can lump

         13  Greenpoint and Williamsburg with the Staten Island

         14  manufacturing areas. Let me just step back for a

         15  minute. Usually when we look what we call

         16  unproductive manufacturing areas, we work very

         17  closely in parternship with those communities. Let's

         18  take for instance Greenpoint and Williamsburg or

         19  Morrisania in the Bronx. Those are the -- Greenpoint

         20  and Williamsburg wrote their own 197A plans. They

         21  really wanted to see development of their

         22  waterfronts. Morrisania, that community board wrote

         23  their 197A plan. They really wanted to see housing

         24  come to Washington Avenue and Third Avenue. So it

         25  really -- many of our re-zonings are really --
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          2  originate with the community generated plan. The so-

          3  called unproductive manufacturing areas of Staten

          4  Island really is a different case. And it goes back

          5  to our original discussion with Council Member

          6  Nelson which is you really have to take re- zonings

          7  in a case by case basis. Because while comprehensive

          8  planning is a good thing in terms of a particular

          9  area or borough, one can't-- one really has to look

         10  at individual situations and evaluate them in terms

         11  of what the infrastructure can handle, for instance.

         12  And Staten Island has very unique circumstances

         13  which we totally appreciate. Therefore, what might

         14  be good for Brooklyn and the Bronx may not be

         15  appropriate for Staten Island. I hope that answers

         16  your question.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: It does and I

         18  certainly accept that and agree with what you say.

         19  Yet, even in Morrisania or in Williamsburg or any

         20  place in Staten Island, it seems to me that the --

         21  when plans are considered or requests are made,

         22  quite too often their driven by individual financial

         23  interest who are seeking to maximize their profits.

         24  Which, of course, is the American way. And it's not

         25  driven by the City or local interest as much as it
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          2  should be. And at the same time, the questions I'm

          3  asking about infrastructure and particularly schools

          4  are not evaluated and taken into consideration as

          5  much as they should be. And I certainly don't know

          6  how the Mayor's ambitious plans now to really go --

          7  to go beyond the things that we're speaking about in

          8  Brooklyn and the Bronx, to do more in this area. I

          9  think it was $6 billion dollar plan. That's fine.

         10  But how can you do that plan without building new

         11  schools and building roads and figuring out how the

         12  people are going to move by mass transportation.

         13                 In other words, I don't know. Maybe I

         14   -- I have a great frustration in this issue and I

         15  know you know that. But I just don't understand why

         16  we don't plan more and provide more of these

         17  services. Along those lines, it's the issue of

         18  private streets. Okay. Why is it -- do you know why

         19  it is that we are now in the business of only doing

         20  new construction by private streets or private

         21  roads? I mean in my district, in the Hillside

         22  District, somebody bought a piece of property and

         23  they're building homes and there is a City mapped

         24  street in the vacant lot that ended and continues in

         25  reality. They're not now building a City street
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          2  there. They're going to build a private street. Why

          3  is that and how is that planning for the future if

          4  we have all these private road developments?

          5                 MS. BURDEN: I think it's a very

          6  complicated issue in Staten Island. I would actually

          7  appreciate it and like it very much if -- because we

          8  really haven't sat down and talked about these

          9  particular issues. If you actually would come to

         10  City planning, we can talk about them on a case by

         11  case basis.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Okay. I

         13  appreciate that very much.

         14                 MS. BURDEN: And work together to

         15  resolve the issues. Because they are complex and

         16  rather unique.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Okay. I

         18  appreciate that very much. Thank you.

         19                 MS. BURDEN: Thank you.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Thank you,

         21  Madam Chairwoman.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I would take as

         23  sort of a commercial, I would ask that anyone who

         24  has like policy questions and issues like that -- I

         25  mean, the Chair I have found very accessible and the
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          2  presentations that they make in their office is

          3  quite enlightening. So, Council Member Brewer, I

          4  apologize.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

          6  much. I agree with the accessibility and the

          7  wonderful way in which CPC operates. I'm just

          8  talking about revenue. I know it's not billions or

          9  millions. But I'm on the bookstore publications

         10  issue. And I'm just wondering if you've realized

         11  more money in this particular year and wondering if

         12  you are thinking if there are any ways to realize

         13  increased revenue from your sales and publications

         14  and bookstore?

         15                 MS. BURDEN: Well, the first thing we

         16  did. I found out when I first was appointed that you

         17  actually couldn't charge things by credit card. It

         18  really doesn't help sales very much. It took a

         19  little while to establish and since we actually put

         20  that into effect, which we didn't do until about

         21  September, we have realized $13,000.00 in sales. So,

         22  we're actually quite pleased by that. We put special

         23  additions or things that we think will be

         24  particularly interesting to the public on our

         25  website. Something we're very proud of. Which we
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          2  just got printed this week are our new neighborhood

          3  maps. Which we will be giving each one of you after

          4  the meeting today. Which I think is a tremendous

          5  resource for any public official or any citizen of

          6  the City of New York. And we'll be selling those

          7  again. Advertising them on our website. And we sell

          8  our zoning resolution in the bookstores. We have

          9  totally repainted and revamped our bookstore.

         10  Because I believe that when you walk into an agency,

         11  the first thing you see sends a message about

         12  accessibility and attention to detail and how we

         13  look. So, its been revamped. We're doing much, much

         14  better. People visit it and we're trying to find

         15  ways to actually make it even more revenue -- to

         16  increase it revenues.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Just one of

         18  the things that over the time because I did look at

         19  past life bookstores around the United States and I

         20  think I've mentioned this before. But your hours are

         21  obviously curtailed based on the fact that's when

         22  the bookstore is opened. When the agency is opened.

         23  And just something to think of down the line is

         24  where can we go where you can sell things. Not just

         25  your staff. But seven days a week. Something for the
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          2  tourism world to consider.

          3                 MS. BURDEN: That's interesting. It

          4  used to hardly be open even when it was -- we used

          5  to joke and say that it was open except when it was

          6  closed.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I know.

          8                 MS. BURDEN: But it's open during the

          9  weekday now. But, in fact, that's an objective for

         10  all Lower Manhattan. I really have it to be very

         11  different including our bookstores. So that's a very

         12  good point.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I've been

         14  saying for about 20 years. So, thank you very much.

         15  And congratulations on the improvement. And I hope

         16  they bring in more revenue.

         17                 MS. BURDEN: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Councilman Koppell?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:

         20  Unfortunately, I cannot quite join my colleagues in

         21  thanking you for all the accessibility. But because

         22  I am concerned about what I'm about to say. It says

         23  here with respect to your function, it is

         24  responsible for initiating changes in the zoning

         25  maps and resolutions and then providing technical
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          2  and professional assistant. I represent the

          3  NorthWest Bronx particularly in connection with

          4  this, the Riverdale Community which is Community

          5  Board A. Community Board A, with some difficulty,

          6  and mostly prior to my becoming a Council Member a

          7  year ago, prepared a 197A plan. I have no sense

          8  whatsoever on the part of the City planning

          9  commission in the Bronx and sort of communicating

         10  from you that there's a sense of urgency to get this

         11  through. Meanwhile, your people in the Bronx know

         12  that the Riverdale community is being inundated with

         13  development and that many of us both, I as an

         14  elected official and individuals are very concerned

         15  over one parcel after another being gobbled up and

         16  large buildings being built and using up vacant land

         17  increasing density.

         18                 A number of aspects of the 197A plan

         19  call for down zoning of certain areas to avoid some

         20  of this issue. I learned, which I didn't know

         21  before, I must admit, that the 197A plan doesn't

         22  prevent anything. It's just a plan. And we have to

         23  move from 197A plan to, I think it's called, 197C.

         24  Or in any event, specific zoning changes. When I

         25  raised with the representatives of your department,
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          2  what do we do to get these zoning changes going.

          3  They say, oh, well, someone has to initiate them I

          4  say, well can a community board initiate them? Yes.

          5  What does the community board have to do? Well, they

          6  should hire an environmental consultant.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Can I just remind

          8  the members of the committee, this really is suppose

          9  to be questions. If you have a question for the

         10  Commissioner --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I have a

         12  question.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: The question

         15  is, is the department using it's money to assist in

         16  this effort. Because my sense is that it's sort of a

         17  passive creature. Not assisting at all. And I'm

         18  asked to -- one of the members here suggested we

         19  enhance your budget. Well, I'm not inclined to

         20  enhance the budget if I don't see any

         21  responsiveness. Even though it says here that it is

         22  responsibility to initiate changes in zoning maps

         23  and resolutions.

         24                 MS. BURDEN: We have looked very

         25  closely at the Riverdale 197A plan. And we'll be
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          2  referring it out in a month.

          3                 MR. BARTH: Mid- April.

          4                 MS. BURDEN: Mid- April. I just spent

          5  four hours up there just last week looking at every

          6  detail of the plan. We're be referring it out in

          7  mid- April. The department has spent a lot of time

          8  on it. It's a very complicated one, the 197A plan,

          9  as I'm sure you aware, covers a vast area and a very

         10  finely textured plan. I'd be delighted, as Chair

         11  Katz has made it clear, my office is extremely

         12  accessible to go over any issues in your district.

         13  I'd be delighted to talk about them. The 197A plan

         14  is definitely proceeding. As I say, it will be

         15  referred out mid- April, a few weeks. And I will

         16  review it and the Commissioner will review it. We

         17  will respond to you on the variety of details, if

         18  any. And what can proceed.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Just one

         20  question. What does it mean referred out? I don't

         21  know what the term means.

         22                 MS. BURDEN: It is actually sent -- do

         23  you want to explain it? It goes to the planning

         24  commission.

         25                 MR. BARTH: It's a charter related
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          2  term. It's sent out to the community board and the

          3  President for 120 days. And then it comes for

          4  advisory comment and then it comes back to the

          5  commission and onto the Council for action.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I'll follow

          7  up with your invitation.

          8                 MS. BURDEN: Please follow up.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I'll just remind

         10  Councilman Koppell that also goes through ULURP and

         11  we'll be seeing it as way from the Council.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I'm aware of

         13  that. The problem is we do all of that and that

         14  still doesn't do anything to protect us. Because we

         15  have to go further. And we need the help of the

         16  commission to go further.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Councilman Comrie.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Good

         19  afternoon, Madam Chair.

         20                 MS. BURDEN: Good afternoon.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I've been told

         22  by some of my congress people that there's some

         23  federal money for transportation act money. And they

         24  wanted to know about different transportation

         25  related projects in my district. Are you aware of
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          2  that or how -- are you able to tie into federal

          3  funding in any way possible?

          4                 MS. BURDEN: We actually do get a good

          5  deal of federal -- a good deal of our department's

          6  funding is federally funded.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Are you aware

          8  of any federal transportation or money that would --

          9  I just got the call yesterday. And the person that

         10  took it didn't take it correctly. So, I haven't had

         11  a chance to call my congress person to understand

         12  exactly what they were trying to say. Is there some

         13  federal bond act money that's coming down the pike

         14  that would help City planning in any way that you're

         15  aware of at this point?

         16                 MS. BURDEN: We get some money for

         17  actually our transportation division staff. But in

         18  terms of specific transportation funding in your

         19  district, I can find out about that very quickly and

         20  get back to you.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. Thank

         22  you. Just on a totally separate idea. As you know

         23  Jamaica downtown is undergoing a large re- zoning

         24  effort and I want to congratulate Debbie Karney

         25  (phonetic) from your Queens zone staff who has come
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          2  out to the community. She is scheduled to come back

          3  out, I believe on the 20th. Is that tonight? Yeah, I

          4  think that's tonight. Maybe I have the wrong date

          5  then. I hope it's not tonight. But she has had a

          6  series of community meetings. My concern is that, as

          7  you know, part of that area is -- consist of

          8  residential homes that are right up against

          9  commercial or industrial properties. And how can we

         10  create a sub- zone within a zone to make sure that

         11  those residential homes -- some of them have been

         12  there for a 100 years, will stay R32's. Even though

         13  they are -- we talking like mid- block split type of

         14  thing. Is that possible?

         15                 MS. BURDEN: If you actually -- I

         16  think if you talk to Debbie Karney, she's been very

         17  careful to do a very carefully honed re- zoning. And

         18  even though it's 415 blocks, part of it near the Air

         19  Train station, of course, we're trying to zone for

         20  increased development. So we really create a region

         21  of business district there.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.

         23                 MS. BURDEN: But where there's

         24  existing neighborhoods further to the east, to

         25  really protect those areas, so it's a very balanced
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          2  plan that has growth in certain areas and

          3  preservation in others. I'm sure Debbie would be

          4  more than pleased to go through the zoning in

          5  detail. The proposed zoning in detail with you.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: She's been

          7  very helpful. But what I'm asking you is something

          8  specific. Is possible to create a mid- block split

          9  zone?

         10                 MS. BURDEN: It depends on the

         11  particular situation.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         13                 MS. BURDEN: Because sometimes it

         14  works out that way and sometimes there's a reason

         15  why not. But if there's a specific block that you're

         16  concerned about, we'll definitely look at and see

         17  what we can do.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And what would

         19  be the parameters to create it or you're saying that

         20  it would depend on a particular block and a

         21  particular situation?

         22                 MS. BURDEN: And what the impact would

         23  be.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: If there are

         25  general --
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          2                 MS. BURDEN: Do you want to add

          3  anything to that, Richard?

          4                 MR. BARTH: I would just add if we

          5  could sit down and show us what the particular

          6  specific problems are and then we'll see if there's

          7  a solution to it.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

          9                 MR. BARTH: Typically, the more

         10  typical A's have the distinction of zones, avenues

         11  and the mid- block is a separate zone.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.

         13                 MR. BARTH: If you're asking separate

         14   --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I have many

         16  homes in that area. As you know, Long Island

         17  Railroad cuts through that area and right adjacent

         18  to the Long Island Railroad, I have small industrial

         19  and then attached to one family and two families. I

         20  just wanted to make sure that there's a continual

         21  buffer so that the industrial doesn't overwhelm the

         22  visibility from the one and two family homes. A

         23  small one, two family homes. So that's something we

         24  would have to go over block by block and area by

         25  area. But that is a large concern that came out of
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          2  the two public meetings that she's had already.

          3                 MS. BURDEN: Good. I'll also mention

          4  it to Debbie your concern as well. And we can look

          5  at in more detail.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. Thank

          7  you. I know that's not budget, but, thank you, Madam

          8  Chair.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: That's all right.

         10  Just one more quick question. The transportation

         11  issue that you spoke about, Richard, and the studies

         12  done by your transportation unit, I guess you call

         13  it?

         14                 MR. BARTH: Division.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Division.

         16  Transportation division. You mentioned the work

         17  being done in Lower Manhattan. Are we getting money

         18  extra for that work? Is that work that's going to be

         19  done within the 16 acres? Is that work that's funded

         20  through the federal funds?

         21                 MR. BARTH: That particular work was

         22  not through any special budget allocations. That was

         23  through our existing federal transportation funding.

         24  We always each year set aside a portion of it to

         25  focus on specific planning issues that come up
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          2  during the year. That obviously was of great

          3  importance to focus on those resources.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So that money is

          5  part of our regular budget?

          6                 MR. BARTH: Yeah.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: That they were

          8  doing in Lower Manhattan. And it's happening within

          9  the 16 acres? Part of this transportation issues?

         10                 MR. BARTH: It covered -- the work

         11  that was done covered all of downtown. I looked at

         12  commuter rail access to downtown and looked at

         13  different alternatives. Didn't focus specifically on

         14  the site.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: The reason,

         16  obviously, I'm asking is because we have absolutely

         17  no say as a City nor as an agency or as a Council on

         18  what's going into those 16 acres or how those 16

         19  acres are going to be utilized. So, I guess the

         20  question is pertaining to the fact that our money is

         21  being used for those issues down in Lower Manhattan

         22  and whether or not we're getting extra funding to

         23  allocate for our agencies using -- obviously using

         24  their expertise down there.

         25                 MS. BURDEN: No.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And the answer

          3  would be no.

          4                 MS. BURDEN: No.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Any other

          6  questions? Chair Burden, Richard, we thank you very

          7  much for your time.

          8                 MS. BURDEN: Thank you, Madam Chair.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Once again, always

         10  a pleasure.

         11                 MR. BARTH: Thank you.

         12                 MS. BURDEN: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I want to thank the

         14  committee members that are still here especially,

         15  but you should know Madam Chair that 16 out of 17 of

         16  the committee members were here today for this

         17  testimony.

         18                 MS. BURDEN: Wow.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: In and out all day

         20  which I think is a record. And I want to just thank

         21  each and every one of you for being here.

         22                 MS. BURDEN: That has to be attributed

         23  to you, Madam Chair. We're going to --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I doubt that.

         25                 MS. BURDEN: -- Give you our map.
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          2  Don't leave without your maps. We're very excited

          3  about them.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay. We'll hand

          5  out maps. Thank you. Meeting adjourned. I want to

          6  thank the staff, by the way, Chris, Amonzo,

          7  everybody in Finance. Thank you very much for all

          8  the work you've been doing on this. We know a lot of

          9  work goes into these hearings. Thank you.

         10                 (Meeting adjourned at 2:55 p.m.)
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